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Superior shareholder returns and continuous
value creation have been primary goals at Guidant
since it began as a publicly traded company in
December 1994. Over the subsequent nine years,
revenue growth approximated $3 billion, and
stock appreciation consistently outperformed
major indices. A $100 investment in Guidant 
on December 31, 1994 was worth $1,517 on
December 31, 2003.

Sales growth, averaging 18 percent annually, 
has been driven by a remarkable flow of new
technologies. To maintain that velocity, Guidant
leads its industry in research and development
investments, averaging 14 percent of sales 
revenue annually. Over the last ten years, this
ongoing commitment has created escalating
value for shareholders and lifesaving therapies
for more than 12 million cardiovascular 
patients worldwide.
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Another Day, Another Year, 
Another Lifetime.

For Sabin Izagirre, shown on the cover, life changed dramatically
in December 1994. Just 15 days after running a marathon, 
he experienced his first arrhythmia — an abnormally fast heart
rhythm that can lead to sudden cardiac death. At the Barcelona
Hospital Clinic, he was implanted with a cardioverter defibrillator
that restores a normal heartbeat when dangerously fast rhythms
occur. “This little machine is an emergency room inside me,”
Sabin says, “and now if I have a problem, I also have a solution.” 

Innovative solutions for patients like Sabin are the first priority
for the people of Guidant. Every minute of his day, somewhere 
in the world, they are working to advance lifesaving therapies 
for cardiovascular disease. This year’s annual report is dedicated
to these employee-owners, and to the millions of patients they
so diligently serve. 
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07:37:13 a.m. SAN SEBASTIÁN, SPAIN 

Sabin Izagirre begins the day with his wife, Edurne, and their one-year-old son, Markel. The 38-year-old husband and father believes 
that with the implant of a Guidant defibrillator he started the second part of his life.

Millions of cardiovascular patients, like Sabin Izagirre, are living healthier and longer lives because of the 12,000 men and women of
Guidant. Every working minute — in nearly 100 countries around the world — their talent, dedication and resolve are driving new advancements
in medical technologies to improve patient care. In every function and in every department, Guidant people are working together toward one
mission: Lifesaving medical solutions of distinctive value.

| Breakfast with the family |

Location:
San Sebastián, Spain

Patient:
Sabin Izagirre with family

Location:
Temecula, California

Manager, Product Development,
Lead Delivery Systems: Kevin Phillips
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To help ensure timely patient access to innovative therapies, Guidant leverages its clinical leadership to raise awareness of cardiovascular treat-
ments and provide continuing education for physicians. In a virtual reality environment at Guidant’s Institute for Therapy Advancement in Brussels
and at the company’s recently opened institute in Tokyo, physicians enhance their knowledge of and expertise in the most current cardiovas-
cular therapies and techniques. A similar U.S. facility is now under construction in St. Paul, Minnesota, and will open in 2004. 

GUIDANT REACHES OUT TO WOMEN (GROW) IS A GLOBAL INITIATIVE
TO INCREASE AWARENESS AND IMPROVE THE DIAGNOSIS OF
HEART DISEASE, THE NUMBER ONE KILLER OF AMERICAN WOMEN.

Location:
Tokyo, Japan

Senior Associate, Vascular Intervention
Programs, Institute for Therapy
Advancement (center): Koji Kida

Location:
Santa Clara, California

President, Cardiac 
Surgery & Chair, GROW:
Maria Degois-Sainz

Location:
Giessen, Germany

Manager, Accounting & Internal
Control (center): Arno Stein



08:21:09 a.m. SAN SEBASTIÁN, SPAIN 

In the lovely seaside city of San Sebastián, on the northern coast of Spain, Sabin dresses for the office and begins to plan his day 
at a savings bank where he oversees treasury and capital markets.

In expanding its global reach to electrophysiologists, cardiologists and hospitals worldwide, Guidant has doubled its Cardiac Rhythm
Management sales organization over the past three years. In addition, a specialized sales organization was established in the United States to
enhance therapy awareness within the cardiologist community, increase therapy adoption and accelerate the referral process.
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Location:
Paris, France

Manager, Regional Sales, France:
Fabienne Sanglier

Clinique Bizet, Paris:
Arnaud Lazarus, M.D.

Location:
Hong Kong, China

Regulatory Associate:
Terrenz Leung



| Dressing for the office |

Guidant operates within a highly regulated industry, and its regulatory professionals are essential in defining the path to product approval and
appropriate reimbursement. Located around the world, they are effective liaisons with a myriad of governments and governmental agencies. 
The Guidant Europe Advisory Board and the Guidant Japan Advisory Board are additional assets the company leverages to better understand
emerging regulatory and reimbursement issues in major international markets.

INFORMATION FOR PATIENTS, PHYSICIANS AND THE PUBLIC 
IS AVAILABLE AROUND THE CLOCK THROUGH GUIDANT’S 
DEDICATED CUSTOMER AND TECHNICAL SERVICE REPRESENTATIVES,
AS WELL AS ITS COMPREHENSIVE WEB SITE (www.guidant.com).
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Location:
San Sebastián, Spain

Patient:
Sabin Izagirre

Location:
Temecula, California

Senior Specialist, Customer Service:
Brian Cabulagan



| Walking to work |

08:58:23 a.m. SAN SEBASTIÁN, SPAIN 

For a little daily exercise, Sabin either walks to work or rides his bicycle. After the implantable defibrillator procedure, he replaced 
long-distance running with kayaking, and swims year-round at an indoor pool or in the calm waters of the Bay of Biscay. 

The manufacturing organization delivered exceptional performance throughout 2003, meeting aggressive goals in product launches, 
product availability, manufacturing speed and process efficiency. Experienced technicians — supported by continued investment in state-of-the-art
automated manufacturing equipment and expansion — have streamlined manufacturing processes to reduce cost, improve quality, increase through-
put and shorten the product development and manufacturing cycle, speeding the delivery of lifesaving therapies to physicians and patients worldwide.
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Location:
Temecula, California

Lead Operator: 
Nora Ledesma

Location:
San Sebastián, Spain

Patient:
Sabin Izagirre
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Close working relationships between Guidant’s sales professionals and their clinician customers help ensure that research and development
expenditures result in meaningful innovation and products of distinctive value. Guidant’s Medical Advisory Boards — composed of thought-
leading physicians from both private practice and research organizations — play a critical role in advising Guidant on product development,
market development and public policy issues. 

WITH AN UNRELENTING FOCUS ON QUALITY IN EVERYTHING THEY DO,
GUIDANT’S EMPLOYEE-OWNERS DELIVER REVOLUTIONARY CARDIOVASCULAR
SOLUTIONS TO MILLIONS OF PATIENTS AROUND THE GLOBE.

Location:
Madrid, Spain

Manager, Shipping and Logistics:
Francisco Fernàndez Garcia

Location:
Fukuoka, Japan

District Manager, Sales,
Japan: Masato Nagashima

The Second Department of Internal Medicine,
University of Occupational and Environmental
Health, Japan: Haruhiko Abe, M.D., FACC



| Lunchtime with Edurne |

02:04:31 p.m. SAN SEBASTIÁN, SPAIN 

Lunchtime is a family affair, and Sabin either makes a trip home to share a meal with little Markel or meets his wife, Edurne, at 
the restaurant where she works. It’s a popular dining spot, owned and operated by Edurne’s father.

Guidant is a pioneer in the development of implantable defibrillator technologies and cardiac resynchronization therapy, and the
company’s ongoing leadership is supported by remarkable capabilities in mechanical, electrical and computer engineering. Superior engineering
spurred the launch of a new implantable defibrillator in every quarter of the past year. Product development velocity will continue as the company
pursues novel technological advancements and iterative product improvements, and leverages its existing technologies into new clinical applications.
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ONGOING ADVOCACY FOR GREATER COMPETITION AND
CHOICE IN HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS INVOLVES ALL
GUIDANT BUSINESSES AND THOUSANDS OF GUIDANT
EMPLOYEES WORLDWIDE. 

Location:
San Sebastián, Spain

Patient:
Sabin with Edurne

Location:
Washington, D.C.

Vice President, Government Affairs:
Ann Gosier



Guidant’s Vascular Intervention business underscored its leadership in metallic stent design with the 2003 launch of the MULTI-LINK VISION®

Coronary Stent System. This cobalt chromium platform is integral to the company’s next-generation drug eluting stent systems. In preparation
for pivotal drug eluting stent clinical trials beginning in 2004, preclinical research and rigorous testing continued throughout 2003, and new
capabilities were developed in pharmacokinetic testing, pharmacodynamics, drug formulation and polymer technology. 
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Location:
St. Paul, Minnesota

Advisor, Reliability Engineering:
Bob Harguth

Location:
Santa Clara, California

Director, Research and Development,
Drug Eluting Stents: Vidya Nayak



04:48:54 p.m. SAN SEBASTIÁN, SPAIN 

With a degree in business administration from the University of Deusto, in Bilbao, Spain, Sabin was well prepared for a career in 
banking and finance. He has worked at a savings bank in San Sebastián since 1991. 

Continued growth springs from an entrepreneurial culture and highly talented people attracted by the world-class work environment, 
stock-ownership opportunities, competitive benefits and multiple career choices that Guidant provides. Employee-owners are invited to create their
own career paths, choosing to focus on one specific discipline or move among various businesses, functions and geographies. To help them on
their journey, development programs are specifically tailored to each individual’s position, expertise and future goals.
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Location:
San Sebastián, Spain

Patient:
Sabin Izagirre

Location:
Washington, D.C.

Director, Sales, 
Mid-Atlantic Area: 
Sam Conaway

Electrophysiologist,
Cardiology Associates P.C.:
Jay Mazel, M.D.



Research and Development continually searches for innovative solutions to unmet clinical needs that help physicians improve the care of patients
with cardiovascular disease. Across every line of business, Guidant’s engineers and scientists are constantly pushing the limits of technology. 
In Endovascular Solutions and Cardiac Surgery, for example, their focus on less-invasive therapies is developing new treatments for carotid artery
disease and providing alternatives for coronary bypass procedures.
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Location:
Dorado, Puerto Rico

Vice President, General
Manager: Heriberto Diaz

Location:
St. Paul, Minnesota

Director, Human Resources:
Judy Cox

Location:
Temecula, California

Manager, Project Engineering:
Timothy Geiser
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ONGOING INVESTMENTS IN STATE-OF-THE-ART MANUFACTURING
FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT, LIKE THIS ADVANCED AIR PURIFICATION
SYSTEM FOR CLEAN ROOMS, SUPPORT QUALITY MANUFACTURING
AT EVERY PRODUCTION SITE.

06:19:42p.m. SAN SEBASTIÁN, SPAIN 

At a little playground close to home, Sabin relaxes with his wife and their toddler. Because of Guidant’s implantable defibrillator
therapy, he can look forward to a long and happy family life. Another Day, Another Year, Another Lifetime.

Structuring clinical trials to create solid clinical evidence that supports regulatory applications for new products, and provides a rationale
for their use, is fundamental to the company’s continued success. Guidant is a leader in the sponsorship of clinical research that significantly
influences the practice of cardiovascular medicine. Landmark findings from Guidant-sponsored clinical trials have demonstrated substantially
reduced mortality rates in patients with severe cardiovascular disease who received Guidant devices. The dramatic results of the MADIT II study
supported broader patient access to defibrillators through expanded labeling and enhanced Medicare and private-payer reimbursement.

Location:
Temecula, California

Vice President, Customer & Site
Services (right): Ken Carlisle

Location:
St. Paul, Minnesota

Principal Regulatory Affairs
Associate: Sherry Poganski



| Fun in the park |
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Passage of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, with its sweeping changes in U.S. corporate and securities law, was an opportunity to evaluate
and enhance Guidant’s internal financial controls, reporting procedures and system structure for effectiveness and integrity. In line with its 
commitment to full compliance, the company is ensuring that the new regulations are incorporated into its systems and is leveraging its best
practices across the entire global organization. 

Location:
San Sebastián, Spain

Patient:
Sabin with his family

Location:
Indianapolis, Indiana

Director, Global Accounting 
and Policy: Annette Such
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09:21:46 p.m. SAN SEBASTIÁN, SPAIN 

As the day winds down, Sabin gets a sleepy Markel ready for bed. It’s a loving ritual of bath time, story time and sweet dreams 
for a little boy whose dad expects to be around for a very long time.

Guidant is a world leader in developing new products for the treatment of cardiovascular and vascular disease. During the last four years,
half of corporate revenue was derived from products less than one year old. To maintain its leadership position, Guidant invests more in research
and development, as a percentage of sales, than any other comparable medical technology company. That investment exceeded $518 million
in 2003, and the new product pipeline has never been more robust.

Location:
St. Paul, Minnesota

Director, Applied Research:
Milton Morris

Location:
Dorado, Puerto Rico

Process Development Engineer:
Juan Carlos Rodriguez



| Bedtime for Markel |
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Opportunities for long-term, sustainable growth are embedded in product development work now under way. Capabilities in electrical 
stimulation, programming and sensing concepts will support new advanced patient management technologies, which are designed to improve
patient outcomes and healthcare economics. Development teams are already working on third- and fourth-generation drug eluting stent products,
and new competencies in the site-specific delivery of therapeutic agents that have the potential to open exciting new avenues for Guidant.

WHILE THE IZAGIRRE FAMILY SLEEPS, GUIDANT PEOPLE AROUND
THE GLOBE ARE STILL HARD AT WORK, ADVANCING LIFESAVING
THERAPIES FOR MILLIONS OF CARDIOVASCULAR PATIENTS.

Location:
St. Paul, Minnesota

Manager, Supplier Development:
Sigfredo Peña

Location:
San Sebastián, Spain

Patient:
Sabin and Markel 
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Message from the President RONALD W. DOLLENS
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To Our Investors, Employee-Owners,
Medical Partners and Patients:

I am pleased to report that 2003 was another
record-breaking year for Guidant, with double-
digit growth in sales in all major geographies.
Revenue gains were primarily driven by
exceptional growth in our Cardiac Rhythm
Management business, propelled by a new
therapy for heart failure — cardiac resynchro-
nization — and compelling clinical data
that expanded the universe of heart patients
who can benefit from implantable cardiac
defibrillators.

These new benchmarks are the latest
chapter in a continuing story of exemplary
growth. Over the past nine years, annual
sales increases averaged 18 percent. And
over the past two years alone, incremental
sales growth exceeded $1 billion. The com-
pany’s diversified product portfolio will con-
tinue to support sustainable growth well into
the future.

This extraordinary financial achieve-
ment is the result of the talent, resiliency and
resourcefulness of our 12,000 employee-
owners. Because of their dedication and
commitment, demonstrated every working day
— and illustrated on the pages of this year’s
annual report — our lifesaving therapies are

now used every 20 seconds to treat 2 million
patients worldwide. We expect that number
to increase substantially, as we prepare to
lead the industry in two of the most important
areas of cardiovascular technology today: 
cardiac resynchronization therapy and drug
eluting stents.

Implantable Defibrillators and Cardiac
Resynchronization Therapy  Based on the
findings of two Guidant-sponsored clinical trials
— the pivotal MADIT II and COMPANION —
therapy awareness has increased dramatically
for implantable cardioverter defibrillators and

These extraordinary financial achievements are driven 
by the talent, resiliency and resourcefulness of our 12,000
employee-owners. Because of their dedication and commit-
ment, demonstrated every working day, our lifesaving 
therapies are now used every 20 seconds to treat 2 million
patients worldwide.

PRODUCT DIVERSIFICATION
SALES MIX

*US end-user coronary stent revenue

IMPLANTABLE 
DEFIBRILLATORS

PACEMAKERS

EMERGING
THERAPIES

OTHER VI

US STENTS*

+$538 MILLION, 17%

2002 / $3.2B
2003 / $3.7B

32%

20%

5%

25%

18%

40%

18%

6%

25%

11%
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cardiac resynchronization therapy. Year-over-
year worldwide market growth has escalated
from $256 million in 2000 to more than 
$1 billion in 2003. 

In 2003, Guidant’s implantable
defibrillator sales increased 48 percent over
the prior year, and we believe that’s only the
beginning. We expect robust growth to con-
tinue for the foreseeable future, based on
the increasing prevalence of cardiovascular 
disease. Heart failure patients alone now
exceed 22 million worldwide, and more than
550,000 new cases are diagnosed annually
in the United States. More Americans die
from sudden cardiac death than from lung
cancer, breast cancer and AIDS combined.

Our ongoing focus is ensuring that
physicians, patients and their families become
fully aware of the benefits that Guidant’s
landmark clinical trials have shown. For heart
attack survivors with compromised heart
function, implantable defibrillators reduce
mortality from sudden cardiac death. In addi-
tion, the investigators for the COMPANION
Trial, sponsored by Guidant, recently reported
that for advanced heart failure patients with
desynchronized heart contractions, the addi-
tion of resynchronization therapy to optimal
drug treatment reduced the combination of
death or hospitalization when compared with
optimal drug treatment alone.

We continue to enhance these
incredible technologies and, in 2003, intro-
duced a new implantable defibrillator every
quarter. Equally important are our efforts to
ensure timely patient access, and I’m
extremely gratified that our public policy 
initiatives of the past year were instrumental
in expanding Medicare reimbursement and
coverage for these lifesaving therapies. 

Drug Eluting Stents  The opportunity in
drug eluting stents is truly historic, with 
projected market growth from $1.6 billion 
in 2003 to $5.8 billion in 2006. The U.S.
market alone is expected to reach $3 billion
by year-end, and Guidant gained immediate
market entry in February 2004 through a
strategic agreement with Cordis Corporation,
a Johnson & Johnson company. Under terms
of the agreement, both companies will co-
promote Cordis’ CYPHER™ Sirolimus-eluting
Coronary Stent, which has consistently
demonstrated excellent clinical results. 
We also have the option to pursue a similar
arrangement in Japan in the future. In addi-
tion, we will assist Cordis in the development
of a CYPHER Stent that utilizes Guidant’s
high-performance MULTI-LINK VISION® Stent
Delivery System. 

Our own internal drug eluting stent
program remains on track to introduce our
CHAMPIONTM Everolimus Eluting Stent System
in Europe in the first quarter of 2005, followed
by a U.S. launch early in 2006. We have
strengthened our competitive position through-
out the year by enhancing our drug eluting
stent development capabilities and significantly
expanding our intellectual property portfolio.

“No other company is as 
leveraged to the two big
opportunities of this decade 
in cardiovascular devices 
— drug eluting stents and 
cardiac resynchronization —
as Guidant”

MICHAEL WEINSTEIN, 

J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC. 
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We continue to develop our next-
generation drug eluting stent products, based
on the MULTI-LINK VISION Coronary Stent
System, and we’re investing heavily in all of
these programs to maintain our momentum:
$95 million in 2002, $110 million in 2003,
and $125 million in 2004.  

At the same time, we continue to
lead the market in metallic stents and have
retained our U.S. leadership position for 
24 of the last 25 calendar quarters. While
the metallic stent market continued to grow
in Europe and Japan during 2003, U.S.
demand declined 30 percent with the
increased penetration of drug eluting stents.
The impact on Guidant was partially offset
by substantial share gains worldwide, and
the overall 8 percent decline in our worldwide
metallic stent business was less than expected.
Much of that success resulted from our ability
to create a new market segment with the cobalt
chromium MULTI-LINK VISION Coronary
Stent System, which allowed us to maintain
metallic stent pricing and increase share.

We are aggressively pursuing entry
into the worldwide drug eluting stent market
with our own everolimus-based program and

through our alliance with Cordis. We believe
that our leadership position in metallic stents,
our capabilities in platform and delivery system
design and our expanding intellectual property
portfolio will strongly position Guidant to be
a drug eluting stent market leader for the bal-
ance of this decade and beyond.

Sustainable Growth  Guidant has never been
better positioned for long-term sustainable
growth and profitability. Our complex and
multifaceted global business, depicted in this
year’s annual report, is managed by a cadre
of dedicated and highly experienced profes-
sionals. And our organizational structure
ensures sharp focus and accountability, while
enabling us to leverage our full capabilities
across the entire company. 

We are poised to lead in this
decade’s two most important areas of cardio-
vascular technology. Leadership in cardiac
resynchronization therapy and drug eluting
stents can bring substantial growth, and the
experience we gain will open new opportunities
in site-specific therapeutic treatment and
implantable stimulation and sensing concepts
for advanced patient management, while

complementing our ongoing development of
emerging therapy products. Because new prod-
uct flow is so essential, we lead our industry
in research and development investments,
averaging 14 percent of sales revenue annu-
ally. Half of our sales revenue during the past
four years was derived from products less than
one year old.

At all levels of the corporation, we
are continually working to shape public policy
on a global scale. This is our number one
strategic issue because of its impact on patient
access to quality care, financial viability of
healthcare providers and necessary funding
for continued technological innovation. On the
following pages you’ll find a brief summary of
our major initiatives and the milestones we
achieved in 2003.

We appreciate the strong support of
our shareholders and medical partners, and the
reliable counsel of our board, including our
newest directors Kristina M. Johnson, Ph.D.,
dean of Duke University’s Pratt School of
Engineering, who joined the board January 1,
2004, and Jack A. Shaw, retired president,
chief executive officer and director, Hughes
Electronics Corporation, who was elected
February 17, 2004. They both will be
important contributors as we continue to
develop the next generation of medical
technology solutions to improve and extend
the lives of millions of cardiovascular patients
around the world. 

Ronald W. Dollens
President and Chief Executive Officer 

(Photo right) 
ON AUGUST 13, 2003,
GUIDANT'S MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE HELD ITS
SEMIMONTHLY MEETING
AT THE NEW YORK STOCK
EXCHANGE. IN CONJUNC-
TION WITH THAT MEETING,
GUIDANT PRESIDENT AND
CEO RONALD W. DOLLENS
RANG THE CLOSING BELLSM.
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Operations Review
2003 was another year of remarkable growth and achievement,
with major accomplishments in every global business and
every discipline. At each level of the organization, the
resiliency and resourcefulness of Guidant’s 12,000 employee-
owners ensured continued corporate leadership in medical
technology. The sampling of achievements highlighted here
is representative of their performance.
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PUBLIC POLICY

MARKETING AND
DISTRIBUTION

RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT

PUBLIC POLICY

MARKETING AND
DISTRIBUTION

RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT

Introduced 37 new products,
including the world’s smallest
dual chamber implantable
defibrillator, the next-generation
cardiac resynchronization 
pacemaker, a unique balloon
catheter for treatment of coro-
nary artery disease, and new
technologies for less-invasive
cardiac surgery. 

Launched worldwide the first in 
a new class of coronary stents
using a cobalt chromium alloy
for thinner strut design and
lower profile, enabling physicians
to access challenging coronary
blockages. 

Broadened the Advanced Patient
ManagementTM initiative with
development of the LATITUDETM

platform, a clinical information
system that is designed to link
patients and physicians through
wireless communications and
Internet technologies. With its
strategic partners, now including
GE Healthcare, the company is
developing real-time cardiac
monitoring capabilities, compat-
ible with existing and emerging
clinical information systems
and electronic medical records.

Realigned the Vascular
Intervention business to 
strategically focus more than
500 professionals on the rapid 
introduction of drug eluting
stents; formed an entrepreneurial
subsidiary to develop fully 
bioabsorbable stent platforms.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

2003 Achievement Highlights

Helped develop and execute 
strategies that resulted in
enactment of the Medicare
Prescription Drug Improvement
and Modernization Act of 2003.

Improved patient access to
advanced medical technology 
by promoting additional hospital
inpatient payment for innovative
therapy procedures and expanded
coverage for clinical trials. 

Influenced positive decisions 
of the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS) to
increase provider reimbursement
for implantable defibrillator 
procedures with heart failure
diagnosis, and to expand national
coverage for implantable 
defibrillators based on the 
landmark Guidant-sponsored
MADIT II clinical trial.

Helped shape the Health
Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) 
regulation to ensure that the
right of patient privacy is 
balanced with information
needs essential to patient 
treatment and medical
research.

PUBLIC POLICY

Increased physician access to
rapidly changing cardiovascular
techniques and therapies 
with the opening of the 
Guidant Institute for Therapy
Advancement in Japan. The
Tokyo facility is modeled after
the company’s first institute,
located in Brussels, where the
5,000th participant attended
educational programs in 2003.
A third Guidant institute is 
now under construction in 
St. Paul, Minnesota, and will
open in 2004.

Expanded the Cardiac Rhythm
Management sales organization
in the first six months of 2003,
achieving the largest sales 
personnel increase in any six-
month period of the company’s
history.

Co-sponsored major international
heart failure symposium with
Merck KGaA of Germany. The
Paris symposium provided a
unique information-sharing
opportunity for more than 300
medical professionals in device-
based and drug therapy.

Initiated National Registry 
to Advance Heart Health and
enrolled more than 12,000
patients by year-end. 
ADVANCENTSM is the first 
registry to study the complete
spectrum of care for patients
with left ventricular dysfunction.
This new software system helps
clinicians easily capture and
stratify patient metrics, auto-
matically screening for degree
of risk and clinical pathways to
lifesaving therapies. 

MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION



OPERATIONS AND 
MANUFACTURING

ADMINISTRATION /
BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

REGULATORY
AND CLINICALS

OPERATIONS AND 
MANUFACTURING

ADMINISTRATION /
BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT 

REGULATORY
AND CLINICALS

Stimulated growth and value 
creation with the completion of
22 business-development agree-
ments designed to enhance
Guidant’s competitive position
through equity investments 
and acquisitions. Investments
in 2003 totaled $164 million,
with up to an additional $458
million committed for future 
investment as milestones are
achieved.

Reinstated the company’s divi-
dend program based on strong
cash flow and financial position;
completed the repurchase of
$250 million of Guidant 
common shares.

Enhanced compliance programs
with Sarbanes-Oxley legislation
and related regulations; 
established global core project
team to provide coordination
and oversight and developed
computer-based training for all
management personnel. 

Updated the company’s Code
of Business Conduct in line
with recent legislative and 
regulatory changes; implemented
a new process that is designed
to result in the training and
certification of every U.S.
employee to ensure that 
professional conduct reflects
Guidant’s strong corporate 
values and can withstand 
rigorous public scrutiny. 

ADMINISTRATION / BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

Invested $249 million in facili-
ties and equipment worldwide,
adding increasingly sophisticated
test equipment and systems to
enhance quality, additional
automation to reduce potential
for human error and lower
operating costs, and advanced
production equipment to
increase manufacturing speed.

Increased production of
implantable pacemaker and
defibrillator products by 
approximately 30 percent, 
with production outpacing
spending by nearly 10 percent
year over year. Manufactured
more than 2 million stents and
balloon catheters, while reduc-
ing production costs by nearly
15 percent. 

Launched expansion program 
at Puerto Rico facility to 
significantly increase manufac-
turing capacity and efficiency; 
completed construction of a
new 100,000-square-foot
Learning and Development
Center in St. Paul, Minnesota. 

OPERATIONS AND MANUFACTURING

Secured 53 product approvals
from the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) and other
regulatory agencies worldwide.

Supported the investigative team
in presentation of landmark
findings of the Guidant-spon-
sored COMPANION Clinical Trial
at the Heart Failure Society of
America 7th Annual Scientific
Meeting. The trial results, 
demonstrating the efficacy of
resynchronization therapy, have
also been submitted to a major
peer-reviewed journal for
expected publication in 2004. 

Began U.S. clinical trial of next-
generation cardiac resynchro-
nization therapy defibrillator,
combining treatment for both
heart failure and disabling atrial
arrhythmias, which affect as
many as one-third of the nation’s
5 million heart failure patients. 

Completed patient enrollment in
third clinical trial designed to
evaluate carotid artery stenting
— a new therapy for stroke 
prevention — as a minimally
invasive alternative for patients
who are ineligible for current
surgical options or at high 
surgical risk.

Achieved key clinical milestones
in evaluating multiple platforms,
drugs and polymer coatings for
Guidant’s drug eluting stent
program, and finalized clinical
trial strategy. Clinical trials
slated to begin in 2004 include
an 800-patient European study
to provide additional safety and
performance data, and a 975-
patient U.S. pivotal trial. 

REGULATORY AND CLINICALS



Advocacy campaigns involve all Guidant 
businesses and thousands of Guidant 
employees worldwide. Coordinated efforts not
only advance specific initiatives that impact
patient access to Guidant’s lifesaving therapies
today, but also help create an environment to
support the development of innovative new
therapies for tomorrow. 

MEDICARE REFORM
Fundamentally important to America’s seniors,
the U.S. healthcare system and the future 
of innovation was enactment of the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003, the most 
substantive change to Medicare since its
inception in 1965. Guidant played a signifi-
cant role in developing and executing 

strategies that ensured enactment of this 
historic reform, benefiting patients, providers
and innovators. 

The new Medicare law will improve quality of
care by expanding competition within the pro-
gram and offering greater choice in healthcare
delivery. It introduces new quality and efficiency
measures through disease management and
preventive care programs, quality reporting
initiatives and processes that enable timely
access to medical technologies. The reform
also promotes system efficiency and patient
safety through the use of health information
technology, strengthens healthcare security
for future generations by introducing cost-
containment tools into the program and offers
all Americans an opportunity to provide for
their own healthcare needs.

REIMBURSEMENT AND COVERAGE
Because coverage and payment policies, both
public and private, impact patient access to
new therapies and private investment flows
needed to fund innovation, Guidant continually
works for greater coverage predictability and
timeliness, and adequate payment for
providers. These efforts brought significant
results in 2003. Guidant’s proposal to create
a more appropriate level of payment for heart
failure patients receiving implantable defibril-
lator therapy was adopted by the Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), with
increased payment beginning in October 2003.
CMS also responded favorably to the company’s
request to expand national coverage of
implantable defibrillator therapy based on 
the strong results of the Guidant-sponsored
MADIT II clinical trial.

Public Policy

Shaping public policy to
encourage greater competition
and choice in healthcare 
systems globally is a corporate-
wide commitment at Guidant.
Healthcare policy is the
company’s number one
strategic issue, and Guidant
advocates for policies that
promote timely patient access
to medical technologies, 
support the financial viability
of healthcare providers, and 
foster continued private-
sector investment in medical
innovation.

ADVOCACY

political action

grassroots program

policy relationships

associations / coalitions

brand recognition

senior management counsel:
interpret policy environment,

identify trends

reimbursement:
secure coverage and adequate 
payment for procedures using 

Guidant technologies

issues management:
identify/prioritize emerging issues,
design and execute strategy, build

long-term and issue-specific
alliances
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RONALD W. DOLLENS 
President, Chief Executive Officer,
Guidant Corporation

“In today’s business environment, a highly 
qualified, fully engaged and totally committed
board like ours is fundamentally critical to a 
corporation’s success and credibility.”

ENRIQUE C. FALLA
President, Falla, Smith & Associates, Inc.

“Over the years, Guidant has achieved a 
remarkable depth of management: a cadre of
senior executives combining technical, clinical
and business expertise with both domestic and
international operational experience.”

MICHAEL GROBSTEIN
Retired Vice Chairman, Ernst & Young LLP

“The audit committee provides an open avenue 
of communication for the independent auditor,
management and the internal audit function,
helping to provide appropriate oversight and assure
the integrity of Guidant’s financial statements.”

JAMES M. CORNELIUS
Chairman of the Board (non-executive),
Guidant Corporation

“Much of Guidant’s success can be attributed 
to the independence and working relationship
between our board of directors and corporate
management. We share a vision of what this 
company can become, and we’re working 
together to make it happen.”

MAURICE A. COX, JR.
President, Chief Executive Officer,
The Ohio Partners, LLC

“The Corporate Governance Guidelines we enacted
in August 1997 have played a significant role 
in establishing sound governance and institution-
alizing the company’s decision-making process,
and we’re proud of that.”

NANCY-ANN MIN DEPARLE
Senior Advisor, J.P. Morgan Partners, LLC,
Adjunct Professor, The Wharton School,
University of Pennsylvania

“Public policy is our top strategic issue because 
of its enormous impact on timely patient access
to quality care, financial viability of healthcare
providers and availability of the funding required
for continuous innovation.”

Board of Directors 
The Guidant Board of Directors,
remarkable for its broad capabilities
and diverse experience, provides 
oversight and corporate governance.
Nearly half of the company’s 15
directors are current or former chief
executives, chief financial officers, 
or chief operating officers. Collective
experience includes leadership 
positions with healthcare institutions,
government and regulatory agencies,
major corporations, international
accounting and consulting firms, 
venture capital organizations and
universities. Nearly two-thirds of
Guidant’s directors have served on
the board since the company began
as an independent publicly traded
company in 1994.

(from left to right) RONALD W. DOLLENS, JAMES M. CORNELIUS, J. KEVIN MOORE, KRISTINA M. JOHNSON, PH.D., SUSAN B. KING, EUGENE L. STEP, AUGUST M. WATANABE, M.D.
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KRISTINA M. JOHNSON, PH.D.
Dean, Edmund T. Pratt, Jr. School of Engineering,
Duke University

“With a lifelong interest in bringing novel 
ideas into real-world applications, I’m particularly
pleased to have been elected to the board of 
a company so committed to research and 
innovation.” 

J.B. KING
Counsel, Baker & Daniels

“Through more than a decade of continuous
growth and increasing organizational complexity,
Guidant’s value system has remained a constant,
demanding the highest standards of ethics,
integrity, leadership and performance.”

SUSAN B. KING
Chairman, The Leadership Initiative,
Duke University

“Unlimited opportunities for women and minorities
have brought huge dividends to the company,
and true enrichment through a talented and
diverse work force.”

RUEDI E. WÄGER, PH.D.
President, Chief Executive Officer,
Aventis Behring LLC

“The values we share as a corporation are reflected
in Guidant’s Code of Business Conduct, which
we regularly review and update to ensure maxi-
mum relevance to current business issues, new
legislation and regulatory change.”

AUGUST M. WATANABE, M.D. 
Retired Director, Executive Vice President, 
Science and Technology, Eli Lilly and Company

“Assisting corporate management to identify and
evaluate potential acquisitions that can bring
promising new technologies and therapies 
into the Guidant family is one of our most
rewarding responsibilities.” 

Guidant welcomes new board member 
Jack A. Shaw, retired president, chief 
executive officer and director, Hughes
Electronics Corporation.

J. KEVIN MOORE
Vice President and Managing Partner,
Arbor Group, LLC

“In all my years in healthcare and health admin-
istration, I’ve never seen a stronger commitment
to providers, better programs or more innovative
initiatives than the ones I see here.”

MARK NOVITCH, M.D. 
Retired Vice Chairman of the Board and Chief
Compliance Officer, The Upjohn Company

“As a physician with both industry and govern-
ment experience, I have been impressed with
the way Guidant has incorporated compliance
into its business processes. From early product
development work to post-market surveillance,
compliance obligations are paramount.”

EUGENE L. STEP
Retired Director, Executive Vice President, 
President of the Pharmaceutical Division,
Eli Lilly and Company

“By concentrating on core competencies, product
and market development and customer support,
Guidant has built a successful business model
that is a solid foundation for continued growth
worldwide.”

(from left to right) J.B. KING, NANCY-ANN MIN DEPARLE, RUEDI E. WÄGER, PH.D., MICHAEL GROBSTEIN, MAURICE A. COX, JR., ENRIQUE C. FALLA, MARK NOVITCH, M.D.
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Management Committee

(foreground)  RONALD W. DOLLENS, (first row, left to right) RONALD K. LATTANZE, BEVERLY H. LORELL, M.D., RONALD N. (NICKY) SPAULDING, GUIDO J. NEELS, 
A. JAY GRAF, (second row, left to right) DEBRA F. MINOTT, WILLIAM F. McCONNELL, JR., KEITH E. BRAUER, ROGER MARCHETTI, BEVERLY A. HUSS, MARK C. BARTELL, MARIA DEGOIS-SAINZ, 
DANA G. MEAD, JR., R. FREDERICK McCOY, JR.

RONALD W. DOLLENS
President, Chief Executive Officer

A. JAY GRAF
Group Chairman, 
Office of the President

GUIDO J. NEELS
Group Chairman, 
Office of the President

MARK C. BARTELL
President, U.S. Sales Operations

KEITH E. BRAUER
Vice President, Finance and 
Chief Financial Officer

MARIA DEGOIS-SAINZ
President, Cardiac Surgery 

BEVERLY A. HUSS
President, Endovascular Solutions

RONALD K. LATTANZE
President, Japan 

BEVERLY H. LORELL, M.D.
Vice President, Chief Medical 
and Technology Officer

ROGER MARCHETTI
Vice President, Human Resources

WILLIAM F. McCONNELL, JR. 
Vice President, 
Chief Information Officer

R. FREDERICK McCOY, JR. 
President, Cardiac Rhythm
Management

DANA G. MEAD, JR.
President, Vascular Intervention

DEBRA F. MINOTT
Vice President, General Counsel 
and Secretary

RONALD N. (NICKY) SPAULDING
President, Europe, Middle East,
Africa and Canada
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Guidant Corporation provides innovative, therapeutic medical solutions of
distinctive value for customers, patients and healthcare systems around
the world. Guidant’s lifesaving medical technologies are designed to
extend the lives and improve the quality of life of millions of patients suf-
fering from life-threatening cardiac and vascular disease. Approximately
12,000 employees develop, manufacture and market the Company’s
medical devices in nearly 100 countries, with key operations in the US,
Europe and Asia. As used herein, the terms “the Company” and
“Guidant” mean Guidant Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

THE OPPORTUNITY
Cardiovascular disease is the leading cause of death for both men and
women in the US today and claims more lives each year than the next
five leading causes of death combined. Within cardiovascular disease,
Guidant develops, manufactures and markets products that focus on the
treatment of coronary arrhythmias, heart failure, coronary artery disease
and biliary and artery disease including: 

- Implantable defibrillator systems used to detect and treat abnormally
fast heart rhythms (tachycardia) that could result in sudden cardiac
death (SCD), including implantable cardiac resynchronization therapy
defibrillator (CRT-D) systems used to treat heart failure

- Implantable pacemaker systems used to manage slow or irregular heart
rhythms (bradycardia), including implantable cardiac resynchronization
therapy pacemaker (CRT-P) systems used to treat heart failure

- Coronary stent systems for the treatment of coronary artery disease

- Angioplasty systems including dilatation catheters, intravascular radio-
therapy systems and related accessories for the treatment of coronary
artery disease

- Cardiac surgery systems for the treatment of coronary artery disease
and biliary, peripheral and carotid systems used to treat biliary and
artery disease

The population that could be served by Guidant’s products is large. More
than 13 million Americans are currently suffering from coronary artery
disease with approximately 1.6 million Americans treated each year with
a minimally invasive coronary intervention or coronary bypass surgery.
Over 63% of all cardiac deaths in the US are due to SCD (approximately

460,000 cases each year) and more Americans die from SCD than from
lung cancer, breast cancer and AIDS combined. In the US alone, more
than five million people are currently suffering from heart failure and
550,000 new cases are diagnosed annually.

The need for treatment of cardiovascular disease is growing as popula-
tions of developed nations become older and risk factors increase. People
over 65 have six times the risk of developing cardiovascular disease and
heart failure. Hypertension, affecting more than 90 million people in the
US alone and growing at a rate exceeding 5 million new cases per year,
doubles the risk. Obesity, affecting 30% of the US population and grow-
ing at 4% a year, increases the risk by 25 to 50%. And diabetes, growing
at up to 10% annually in the US, increases the risk by 2- to 8-fold.

Guidant has a unique opportunity to serve this rapidly growing market
with its life-saving, life-improving systems. People at risk for SCD or who
suffer from heart failure are significantly underserved. Currently,
implantable defibrillator therapy reaches only a fraction of the recipients
who would benefit from it. One example of this is the significant gender
disparity in the diagnosis and treatment of cardiovascular disease. While
more women than men die from SCD, women account for only about
20% of implantable defibrillator recipients. Guidant Reaches Out To
Women (GROW) is just one of the Company’s many educational programs
targeted to improving physician and consumer awareness about cardiovas-
cular health and treatment. 

Over the past ten years, Guidant has been a leader in advancements in
clinical science for the treatment of cardiovascular disease. Guidant was
the first company to provide heart patients with cardiac resynchronization
and defibrillator therapy to protect them from the extremely fast heart
rhythms that can lead to SCD. The mortality benefit for heart failure
patients and/or heart attack survivors was proven in landmark clinical tri-
als sponsored by Guidant, such as the Multicenter Automatic Defibrillator
Implantation Trial (MADIT), the MADIT II clinical trial and the
Comparison of Medical Therapy, Pacing, and Defibrillation in Chronic
Heart Failure Clinical Trial (COMPANION). The COMPANION clinical trial
results demonstrated a significant reduction in the combined outcome of
all-cause hospitalization or mortality. As Guidant-sponsored clinical stud-
ies continue to demonstrate the benefits of these advanced technologies,
the case for broader and earlier intervention builds.
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Guidant’s technological expertise, close working relationships with physi-
cians/customers and the healthcare community, and strong support of
clinical science all contribute to the Company’s capacity for innovation.
This is manifested in technological advancements, continual, iterative
product improvements, and in the leveraging of Guidant technologies 
for new applications. Over the past four years, half of the Company’s rev-
enues have come from products less than twelve months old.

Operating in markets where substantial innovation is mandatory requires
strong discipline. Sustained growth and superior returns over the long
term have required and will require consistent execution in product devel-
opment, sustained market presence and market development, and active
management of cost structures and incentive systems. A key to this disci-
pline is Guidant’s continued success at educating the medical community
on findings from clinical trials that have broadened the patient popula-
tion that can be served by Guidant’s products. These are all critical in
maintaining the resourcefulness to innovate and the resiliency to meet
competitive challenges. 

2003 OVERVIEW
The Company’s performance in 2003 illustrates both resourcefulness and
resiliency, as Guidant’s product and market development efforts helped
secure a year of remarkable growth in its largest product line, implantable
defibrillator systems, while making substantial progress in addressing the
challenge and opportunity of drug eluting stents. 

In 2003, the Company’s total sales grew 17% to $3.7 billion. This growth
was driven, in substantial part, by 48% growth to $1.5 billion in sales of
implantable defibrillator systems. Implantable defibrillators, implanted
under the skin through a small incision near the collarbone, monitor every
single heartbeat and deliver electrical energy to stop dangerously rapid
and irregular heartbeats and return the heart to normal rhythm.

Guidant’s product and market development efforts helped drive the growth
in implantable defibrillator system sales. Over the course of 2003, the
Company introduced seven new defibrillator products in the US and built
upon its 2002 US launch of CRT-D systems for the treatment of heart fail-
ure. The market grew, among other things, in response to findings from
the MADIT II clinical trial, sponsored by Guidant. MADIT II demonstrated
implantable defibrillator benefits for heart attack survivors with compro-
mised heart function, and allowed patients to be identified without inva-
sive testing. Positive results of the MADIT II study helped secure expand-
ed labeling and enhanced reimbursement for Guidant devices.

While the growth of the implantable defibrillator market during 2003 was
extraordinary, the Company believes that additional opportunity for sub-
stantial growth continues. Key variables include those that were evident
during 2003: the ability to make continuing incremental product improve-
ments, to promote and benefit from clinical evidence demonstrating the
benefits of earlier and broader device intervention, to secure appropriate
reimbursement for use of the devices, and to otherwise meet the substan-
tial competition to innovate and sell that exists in the Company’s markets.
Guidant expects double-digit implantable defibrillator market growth to
continue in 2004, albeit at a slower pace compared to 2003, due in part
to the substantial growth in the market experienced in 2003.

The development of drug eluting stents presents another revolutionary
opportunity in the treatment of cardiovascular disease. Coronary stents
are mesh tubes or coils mounted on catheters that can be advanced from
an incision in a patient’s leg up to a blocked coronary artery. The stent is
deployed in the coronary artery by inflating the balloon on which it is
mounted and pressing the plaque against the wall of the artery. The stent
is left in place as scaffolding to hold the artery open. Guidant has long
been the market leader in metallic coronary stent sales.

The value of stent therapy has been substantially enhanced by drug elut-
ing stents, which are coated with chemical compounds designed to pre-
vent excessive cell re-growth at the site of stent placement. During 2003,
a competitor introduced the first drug eluting stent in the US market, and
Guidant estimates that drug eluting stent penetration was approximately
53% of the US stent market at year-end. Drug eluting stents sell at a
substantial premium to metallic stents, due in part to significant future
healthcare savings expected by patients receiving the device.
Reimbursement has been secured for their use, and customers have
adopted the technology, generally leading to declining sales of metallic
stents. Guidant estimates that the worldwide market for drug eluting
stents will exceed $5 billion in 2006.

The Company remains focused on the stent market and expects to intro-
duce a Guidant drug eluting stent in Europe in 2005, with its first US
launch in 2006. Guidant is advancing multiple stent platforms and poly-
mers (which bind the drug to the stent) with the intent of introducing a
competitive first-generation everolimus eluting stent system, while devel-
oping a second-generation product in parallel. Meanwhile, Guidant has
agreed to co-promote with Cordis Corporation (Cordis) the CYPHER™
Sirolimus-eluting Coronary Stent in the US. (Previous and current devel-
opment efforts are further described in 2003 Operating Results and Note
4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)



Guidant continues to maintain approximately 50% of the US metallic
stent market and has introduced a premium-valued cobalt chromium
metallic stent. While drug eluting stents have reduced US end-user coro-
nary stent sales by 30% to $402.2 million in 2003, all other coronary
stent sales have grown by 28% to $441.5 million in 2003. Guidant
expects end-user metallic coronary stent sales to continue to decline as
additional drug eluting stent competitors enter the market and the
therapy is further adopted by physicians. 

Despite continued pressure on the metallic stent market, Guidant expects
sales in 2004 to grow modestly compared to sales levels in 2003 due to
anticipated sales growth in all other combined product lines. Guidant’s
sales mix shifted toward implantable defibrillators and away from US end-
user coronary stents in 2003, and Guidant expects this trend to continue
in 2004.

SALES

Guidant reported $3,698.8 million worldwide net sales for the year
ended December 31, 2003, representing 17% sales growth compared 
to 2002. Growth in unit volume and price increases favorably impacted
sales by 12% and 1%. The impact of fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates increased sales by $131.2 million or 4%. Sales growth
was driven by 48% growth in implantable defibrillator systems sales,
which accounted for 40% of Guidant’s 2003 worldwide sales. This
growth was partially offset by an 8% decrease in coronary stent system
sales primarily due to the launch of competitive drug eluting stents in
Europe and the US in 2003. 

Implantable Defibrillator Systems Worldwide sales of these systems for
2003 were $1,488.7 million, up $481.9 million or 48% over 2002. US
implantable defibrillator system sales climbed 47% to $1,210.7 million,
while international sales of $278.0 million were up 50% over the prior
year, 30% in constant currency. Implantable defibrillator system sales
include sales of CRT-D systems. Implantable defibrillator system sales
were driven by: 

- Growth of the implantable defibrillator market following announcement
of the MADIT II clinical trial results – This landmark clinical trial was
sponsored by Guidant and demonstrated that a broader group of
patients would benefit from implantable defibrillator therapy.

- Strong market acceptance for CRT-D systems – Guidant’s first CRT-D
system received US Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approval in
May 2002. Guidant has subsequently introduced four new systems.
The most recent system, the CONTAK® RENEWAL 4 CRT-D, received
Conformité Européene (CE) Mark approval in October 2003. The CON-
TAK RENEWAL 3 CRT-D received FDA approval in July 2003.

- Positive market acceptance of the VITALITY™ family of implantable
defibrillator systems – VITALITY AVT received FDA approval in March
2003 and VITALITY DS® received FDA approval in September 2003.
Additionally, VITALITY EL and VITALITY AVT FAST CHARGE were
launched in the US in October 2003. 

In June 2003, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS)
announced its intent to expand national reimbursement coverage for the
use of implantable defibrillators for patients with a previous heart attack,
left ventricular ejection fraction of ≤30%, and ventricular heartbeat
(QRS) duration > 120 milliseconds. This patient group represents a sub-
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2003 Operating Results

SALES SUMMARY

2003 2002
(in millions) US International Total US International Total Growth 

Implantable defibrillator systems $1,210.7 $  278.0 $1,488.7 $  821.7 $185.1 $1,006.8 48%

Pacemaker systems 431.7 251.8 683.5 413.7 222.9 636.6 7%

Coronary stent systems 463.2 380.5 843.7 628.5 292.4 920.9 (8%)

Angioplasty systems 250.1 227.5 477.6 227.9 202.6 430.5 11%

Cardiac surgery, biliary, peripheral
and carotid systems 165.3 40.0 205.3 138.4 27.4 165.8 24%

$2,521.0 $1,177.8 $3,698.8 $2,230.2 $930.4 $3,160.6 17%
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population of the MADIT II clinical trial. The CMS decision, which was
effective October 1, 2003, will help assure the availability of Guidant
implantable defibrillator therapy to a larger population of patients and
extend uniform national coverage to the landmark MADIT I clinical trial
population. Additionally, in August 2003, CMS approved Guidant’s pro-
posal for a new hospital inpatient diagnosis related group (DRG) for
implantable defibrillator therapy and CRT-D therapy for heart failure
patients. This change means higher payments to healthcare providers in
recognition of the increased costs of treating this patient group. The new
DRG was effective October 1, 2003.

Presented results of the Guidant-sponsored COMPANION clinical trial
demonstrated 20% reduction in combined all-cause death and hospital-
ization by adding Guidant’s CRT systems to optimal drug therapy and 36%
reduction in all-cause mortality for Guidant’s CRT-D systems for patients
with advanced heart failure. In December 2003, Guidant submitted an
application that contained a subset of the COMPANION data seeking to
obtain FDA approval to make certain additional claims for its CRT devices.
After consultation with the FDA, the Company has decided that it will now
resubmit the filing with a fuller set of the COMPANION data by the third
quarter of 2004 to seek a broader range of new claims for its CRT devices.

The National Heart, Lung and Blood Institute’s Sudden Cardiac Death in
Heart Failure Trial (SCD-HeFT) has been completed, and the results are
expected to be presented by the end of the first quarter of 2004. SCD-
HeFT is designed to further evaluate the benefits of implantable defibril-
lators in patients with heart failure. CMS has indicated that it may con-
sider the SCD-HeFT results as evidence to further expand reimbursement
coverage for implantable defibrillators. The results of SCD-HeFT may
have a material impact on the trend of implantable defibrillator sales. 

Pacemaker Systems Worldwide pacemaker system sales were $683.5
million in 2003 compared to $636.6 million in 2002, representing 7%
growth. Sales in the US totaled $431.7 million, 4% over 2002.
International pacemaker system sales grew 13% to $251.8 million, and
were consistent with 2002 sales on a constant currency basis. Pacemaker
system sales include sales of CRT-P systems and were driven by: 

- Continued acceptance of the INSIGNIA™ family of pacemaker systems
- FDA approval of INSIGNIA Entra Pacemaker Systems in the first

quarter of 2003 
- European launch of INSIGNIA Ultra and INSIGNIA AVT Pacemaker

Systems in the third quarter of 2003

- Broad acceptance of Guidant’s second-generation CRT-P system, 

the CONTAK RENEWAL TR 2, launched in the third quarter of 2003 
in Europe 

- Significant additions to the cardiac rhythm management US sales force

Additionally, in January 2004, Guidant announced FDA approval of its
CONTAK RENEWAL TR CRT-P System. 

Coronary Stent Systems Worldwide coronary stent system sales in 2003
were $843.7 million, a decrease of 8% compared to 2002 sales of
$920.9 million. Total US coronary stent system sales were $463.2 million
($402.2 million to US end-users) in 2003 compared to $628.5 million
($575.5 million to US end-users) in 2002. Coronary stent system sales in
the US include sales of stent delivery systems (dilatation catheters) to
Cordis. The decline of total US coronary stent system sales was primarily
driven by increasing penetration of competitive drug eluting stents in the
US. The Company expects that drug eluting stent penetration will contin-
ue in both US and international markets. An additional competitive entry
to the US drug eluting stent market is expected in the first quarter of
2004, which will likely increase the penetration rate through the end of
2004. US end-user coronary stent system sales (which exclude the sales
to Cordis) in 2003 accounted for less than 11% of Guidant’s worldwide
revenues compared to 18% in 2002. In February 2004, Guidant entered
into an agreement with Cordis to co-promote Cordis’ CYPHER Sirolimus-
eluting Coronary Stent. The agreement grants Guidant immediate entry
into the US drug eluting stent market and expands Cordis’ access to
Guidant stent delivery systems. Guidant will receive commissions from
Cordis, which will be reported as stent revenue. Guidant’s drug eluting
stent program, which utilizes the drug everolimus, will not be impacted by
the agreement with Cordis.

International sales of coronary stent systems in 2003 grew 30% (18% in
constant currency) to $380.5 million compared to $292.4 million in
2002, primarily attributable to unit volume growth in Japan. Competitor
launches of metallic and/or drug eluting stents in Japan during 2004
could reduce this growth. Guidant’s agreement with Cordis includes a 
separate arrangement that may permit future co-promotion in Japan.

Worldwide average pricing for Guidant’s metallic stents remained stable
compared to 2002 and from the third to the fourth quarter of 2003. Price
stability resulted from the acceptance of Guidant’s premium-valued cobalt
chromium MULTI-LINK™ VISION™ Coronary Stent System and favorable
geographic mix, offset by modest declines in worldwide stainless steel
stent prices.
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Coronary stent system sales include:

- MULTI-LINK VISION Coronary Stent System in Europe since June
2003 and in the US since August 2003

- MULTI-LINK ZETA™ Coronary Stent System launched in the US in
September 2002 - International acceptance continues despite compet-
itive drug eluting stent therapy and competitive launches of new metal-
lic stents.

- MULTI-LINK TRI-STAR™ Coronary Stent System launched in Japan in
the fourth quarter of 2001 and the MULTI-LINK PENTA™ Coronary
Stent System launched in Japan in March 2003

- MULTI-LINK PIXEL™ Coronary Stent System, launched in the US in
2001, designed to treat small-diameter vessels in patients presenting
with abrupt or threatened abrupt closure

- MULTI-LINK ULTRA™ Coronary Stent System designed to treat large-
diameter vessels, launched in the US in 2000

Angioplasty Systems Angioplasty system sales totaled $477.6 million in
2003 compared to $430.5 million in 2002, representing 11% growth.
Key product sales were driven by the Rapid-Exchange (RX) CROSSSAIL™
and Over-The-Wire (OTW) OPENSAIL™ Coronary Dilatation Catheters.

Cardiac Surgery, Biliary, Peripheral and Carotid Systems Worldwide
sales of cardiac surgery, biliary, peripheral and carotid systems totaled
$205.3 million in 2003 compared to $165.8 million in 2002, represent-
ing 24% growth. Sales were driven by:

- VASOVIEW® Endoscopic Vessel Harvesting System

- ACROBAT™ Off-Pump System and HEARTSTRING™ Anastomotic
Facilitator

- .035 Biliary Platforms: DYNALINK® Self-Expanding Stent, OMNILINK®

Balloon Expandable Stent and AGILTRAC™ Peripheral Dilatation
Catheter

- RX ACCULINK™ Carotid Stent System in Europe including the RX
ACCUNET™ Embolic Protection System 

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD
Cost of products sold was $903.8 million in 2003 compared to $762.8
million in 2002, representing 24.4% of net sales compared to 24.1% in
2002. Cost of products sold as a percentage of sales increased in 2003
compared to 2002 due to previously discussed changes in product sales
mix and the impact of foreign currency hedge losses, partially offset by

increased manufacturing efficiencies. The foreign currency hedge losses
recorded in cost of products sold partially offset the increase in sales
caused by the weakening US dollar and served to mitigate the net impact
of foreign currency fluctuations on net earnings. Additionally, in the
fourth quarter of 2003, the Company recorded $11.0 million of expense
related primarily to scrap of work-in-process and finished goods inventory
containing a specific third-party-supplied component. 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Innovation is essential to Guidant’s success. It is one of the primary
bases of competition in Guidant’s markets. The Company works to intro-
duce new products, enhance the effectiveness and ease of use of existing
products and expand the applications for its products. Guidant continued
to invest aggressively in research and development in 2003. Research
and development expense was $518.4 million in 2003, or 14.0% of net
sales, compared to $415.5 million in 2002, or 13.1% of net sales.
Significant investments in research and development in 2003 included:

- Drug eluting stent research and development

- Advanced Patient Management™ applications, designed to enable
physicians to monitor patient heart function remotely and automatically

- Clinical trials to support the benefits of cardiac resynchronization therapy
devices for treating heart failure

- Development of next-generation devices for cardiac rhythm manage-
ment and cardiac surgery products

Important research and development milestones in 2003 included:

- COMPANION Clinical Trial – Prospective, multi-center, randomized
study of patients with advanced heart failure. Presented results of the
COMPANION clinical trial demonstrated a 20% reduction in the pri-
mary endpoint of combined all-cause death and hospitalization by
adding Guidant’s CRT systems to optimal drug therapy and a 36%
reduction in all-cause mortality for Guidant’s CRT-D systems. Results
of the COMPANION trial continue on track for publication in an
upcoming issue of a major peer-reviewed medical journal. 

- DECREASE HF Clinical Trial – Heart failure study designed to demon-
strate the safety and effectiveness of the flexible pacing modes offered
in Guidant’s newest CRT-D systems that began in March 2003.

- CONTAK RENEWAL 3 AVT Clinical Trial - Study designed to study the
effect of device therapy in patients who suffer from both heart failure
and atrial arrhythmias that began enrollment in November 2003. Atrial
arrhythmias affect as many as one-third of the nearly five million peo-



ple in the US who suffer with heart failure. There are no commercially
available cardiac resynchronization therapy devices on the US market
today designed to provide therapy for this common co-morbidity.

- FUTURE I and II Clinical Trials – Studies that evaluate the safety of an
everolimus eluting coronary stent utilizing a bioabsorbable drug-delivery
coating compared to a metallic stent platform in previously untreated
lesions. In June 2003, a FUTURE I milestone was achieved with the
final six-month adjudicated clinical data results showing the MACE
(Major Adverse Cardiac Events) rate as equal to or less than the metallic
stent in the control arm. In September 2003, Guidant announced favor-
able six-month results from the FUTURE II clinical trial, which corrobo-
rated the FUTURE I results. FUTURE II six-month results met the trial’s
primary safety endpoint with a 4.8% MACE rate and 0% in-stent
restenosis in the everolimus eluting stent arm. The everolimus eluting
stent reduced in-stent tissue proliferation compared to the control arm.
FUTURE I twelve-month results were also announced, confirming the
results of the six-month data. Guidant expects to first enter the European
market with a Guidant everolimus eluting stent in 2005 and the US mar-
ket in 2006. Guidant recently filed with European regulatory authorities
the second module of the application to support the CHAMPION
Everolimus Eluting Stent System CE Mark approval.

- European PIXEL Clinical Trial – Study designed to evaluate the per-
formance of Guidant’s MULTI-LINK PIXEL Small Vessel Stent System.
The clinical trial compared the restenosis rates of patients with first-
time lesions whose vessels were expanded with a balloon catheter prior
to stent implantation (pre-dilatation) versus those who received direct
stenting with a MULTI-LINK PIXEL stent. Guidant announced in July
2003 that the study demonstrated six-month restenosis rates of 25%
for the patients in the pre-dilatation group, compared to 16% for those
patients who received direct stenting.

- Acculink for Revascularization of Carotids in High Risk Patients
(ARCHeR) Clinical Trial – Study designed to evaluate the safety and
effectiveness of carotid artery stenting as a minimally invasive alterna-
tive for treating carotid artery disease in patients ineligible for surgery
or at high surgical risk. The Company announced positive preliminary
30-day results in March 2003. In September 2003, Guidant complet-
ed enrollment in its third clinical trial designed to evaluate carotid
stenting, the ARCHeR RX Clinical Trial.

In addition to funding internal research and development efforts, Guidant
also invests in early-stage technologies through equity investments,
acquisitions, and other investment and collaborative vehicles.

IN-PROCESS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (IPRD)
Guidant recorded pre-tax IPRD charges of $83.7 million in 2003 in busi-
ness combinations for the portion of the purchase price representing the
value of technologies relating to products that have not received FDA
approval and have no alternative future use, excluding the value of core
and developed technologies. (See further information on business combi-
nations in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.) 2003 IPRD
charges included:

- MediVas LLC (MediVas) – In September 2003, Guidant acquired a sub-
sidiary of MediVas, including the right to use certain bioabsorbable
polymer technologies. Guidant recorded a $35.2 million IPRD charge
in connection with the purchase. 

- Biosensors International (Biosensors) – In March 2003, Guidant pur-
chased certain assets of Biosensors’ everolimus eluting stent program,
resulting in $20.5 million of IPRD. In June 2003, a milestone related
to the positive six-month clinical data results of FUTURE I was
achieved, resulting in an IPRD charge of $10.1 million. 

- Bioabsorbable Vascular Solutions (BVS) – In March 2003, Guidant pur-
chased the majority interest in BVS, an early-stage developer of bioab-
sorbable stents, resulting in a $16.0 million IPRD charge. The project
is expected to be completed and the products to be commercially
available on a worldwide basis in four to seven years, with an estimat-
ed cost to complete of approximately $50.0 million to $75.0 million. 

2002 pre-tax IPRD charges totaled $54.9 million and included:

- Novartis Pharma AG and Novartis AG (Novartis) – Guidant recorded a
pre-tax IPRD charge of $35.6 million for an exclusive license from
Novartis granting Guidant rights to utilize the drug, everolimus, in drug
eluting stents for the treatment of coronary and peripheral vascular dis-
eases and providing Guidant the right to sublicense.

- Cardiac Intelligence Corporation (CIC) – In December 2002, the
Company completed its acquisition of CIC for $19.3 million for a port-
folio of intellectual property in the field of ambulatory, remote, wireless
monitoring of the heart functions of patients, including those implant-
ed with devices such as pacemakers, defibrillators and resynchroniza-
tion devices. The Company anticipates commercial availability of this
technology on a worldwide basis within 2 to 3 years, with an estimated
cost to complete of approximately $20.0 million to $40.0 million. 

The assets gained through the Novartis, MediVas and Biosensors acquisi-
tions are key components of Guidant’s drug eluting stent program. Guidant
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expects to first enter the European market with a Guidant everolimus elut-
ing stent in 2005 and the US market in 2006. It is estimated that this
project will cost approximately $250.0 million to $300.0 million from
2004 through completion to achieve commercial viability in the US.

The Company continues to move forward with the acquired research and
development projects discussed above. There have been no significant
changes from the estimates used in the original valuations.

SALES, MARKETING AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Sales, marketing and administrative expenses were $1,198.9 million in
2003, an increase of $248.2 million or 26.1% compared to 2002.
Spending as a percentage of sales increased to 32.4% in 2003 com-
pared to 30.1% in 2002 driven primarily by sales growth, resulting in
increased sales commissions, and continued expansion of the US sales
force, including field clinical personnel in the US who support clinicians.

Total expenses increased by $53.5 million as a result of restricted stock
grants made under the 2003 performance-based equity compensation
program, including accelerated vesting based upon the attainment of
Company share price appreciation targets. These expenses were classified
in the income statement consistent with the functional area of related
employees. Approximately two-thirds of the share price appreciation tar-
gets were achieved and expensed in 2003. The final share price appreci-
ation target was achieved in January 2004.  

INTEREST
Guidant recognized $6.3 of net interest income in 2003 compared to
$1.3 million of net interest expense in 2002. This $7.6 million change
was driven by a lower average outstanding debt balance during 2003 and
increased interest income due to larger balances in short-term cash
investments. Additionally, the Company incurred lower interest rates on
long-term notes in 2003 compared to 2002 due to two interest rate swap
agreements with notional amounts totaling $350.0 million in 2003 ver-
sus one interest rate swap agreement totaling $175.0 million in 2002.

ROYALTIES
Net royalty expense totaled $63.9 million in 2003 compared to $54.0
million in 2002. Net royalty expense included royalty income of less than
$1.0 million in both years presented. Royalty expense is incurred for
sales of certain implantable defibrillator systems and stent delivery sys-
tems. The $9.9 million increase in 2003 was primarily due to increased
sales of implantable defibrillator systems. A patent covering certain

implantable defibrillator products expired in December 2003, which will
modestly reduce royalty expense incurred in the near future.

AMORTIZATION
Amortization expense was $20.9 million in 2003 compared to $12.6 
million in 2002. The increase of $8.3 million was primarily driven by
Guidant’s acquisition of X Technologies, Inc. in June 2003. A portion of
the purchase price was allocated to the intangible assets related to the
FDA-approved FX miniRAIL™ Dilatation Catheter.  

OTHER EXPENSES
Net other expenses were $7.7 million in 2003 and were comprised pri-
marily of equity investment write-offs and losses on foreign exchange
contracts. Net other expenses were $12.6 million in 2002, comprised
primarily of fixed asset and equity investment write-offs and losses on
foreign exchange contracts. There were no significant income items
reflected in these line items in 2003 or 2002.  

LITIGATION
The Company recorded $422.8 million in net litigation expense in 2003
primarily comprised of a $425.7 million expense related to the arbitra-
tion decision involving Cordis. In 2002, Guidant recorded a net legal
benefit of $137.1 million resulting from a $158.2 million award against
Medtronic, Inc., partially offset by other minor settlements. See also 
Part II, Item I, “Legal Proceedings.”

INCOME TAX
Income tax expense for 2003 and 2002 was $59.5 million and $250.6
million, resulting in effective income tax rates of 12.3% and 27.3%.
During 2003, the Company reached agreement with US and foreign tax
authorities with respect to various issues in the examination of tax years
1996-2000. The Company adjusted its previous estimate for accrued
taxes by $30.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2003 to reflect the resolu-
tion of these audits. In December 2003, the US Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) proposed adjustments to certain previously filed tax returns. The
Company believes it has meritorious defenses of its tax filings and will
vigorously defend them at the IRS appellate level or through litigation in
the courts. While no assurance can be provided as to the ultimate resolu-
tion of outstanding tax issues, the positions taken by the IRS are not
expected to have a significant impact on the effective tax rate in future
periods. The Company has accrued for all probable liabilities resulting
from tax assessments by tax authorities. 



Following is a reconciliation of income taxes at the US federal statutory
rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate:

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
In June 2003, Guidant’s Board of Directors approved a plan to dispose of
the ANCURE ENDOGRAFT System product line to treat abdominal aortic
aneurysms (AAA) due to continuing financial losses, limited prospects for
the Company’s AAA product line and the impact of the Department of
Justice investigation. (See also Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.) In December 2003, Guidant’s Board of Directors ratified a
plan to discontinue Guidant’s operations in Brazil due to unfavorable
business conditions and poor operating performance. The disposal plans
include the termination of normal activity, abandonment of property and
equipment, product returns, collection of receivables and settlement of
liabilities. Guidant has written down long-lived assets to fair value and
recorded inventory and accounts receivable at net realizable value. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes reflect
the results of operations and financial position of AAA and Brazil as dis-
continued operations for all periods presented. Net loss from discontin-
ued operations includes proceeds from the sale of internally developed
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2002 Operating Results

SALES SUMMARY

2002 2001
(in millions) US International Total US International Total Growth 

Implantable defibrillator systems $  821.7 $185.1 $1,006.8 $  573.2 $143.4 $  716.6 40%

Pacemaker systems 413.7 222.9 636.6 378.2 204.5 582.7 9%

Coronary stent systems 628.5 292.4 920.9 584.5 226.7 811.2 14%

Angioplasty systems 227.9 202.6 430.5 203.6 199.9 403.5 7%

Cardiac surgery, biliary, peripheral
and carotid systems 138.4 27.4 165.8 104.5 23.1 127.6 30%

$2,230.2 $930.4 $3,160.6 $1,844.0 $797.6 $2,641.6 20%

32% IMPLANTABLE 
DEFIBRILLATOR SYSTEMS

25% OTHER CORONARY STENT  
SYSTEMS AND ANGIOPLASTY

20% PACEMAKER SYSTEMS

18% US END-USER 
CORONARY STENT SYSTEMS

5% CARDIAC SURGERY,  
BILIARY, PERIPHERAL  
AND CAROTID SYSTEMS

2002 SALES BY PRODUCT

18%

25%

32%

5%

20%

2002 SALES BY GEOGRAPHY

71% US

18% EUROPE

8% JAPAN

3% OTHER

71%

18%

8%

3%

(in millions) 2003 2002

Income from continuing operations 
before income tax $485.0 $918.7

Income tax expense at the US federal 
statutory rate of 35% $169.8 $321.5

State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 4.2 12.8
Effect of international operations (93.3) (90.0)
Research credit (13.9) (10.0)
Benefit from export incentives (8.3) (9.3)
Nondeductible IPRD 18.9 7.1
Reduction of income tax accruals due to 

tax audit resolution (30.0) —
Other, net 12.1 18.5

Income tax expense $ 59.5 $250.6
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intangible assets, charges related to the impairment of certain long-lived
assets, inventory write-downs, customer returns, litigation settlements
and accruals for employee severance and lease commitments expensed in
2003. Guidant has incurred $95.2 million of losses through December
31, 2003. In December 2003, Guidant granted Cook Incorporated (Cook)
a covenant not to sue related to Cook’s manufacture and distribution of
their endovascular graft products in exchange for $20.0 million. The pro-
ceeds were recorded in discontinued operations. The accrual for the
ANCURE-related investigation of $30.0 million at December 31, 2002,
was increased to $92.0 million in March 2003 and settled in June 2003
for $92.4 million. See Part II, Item I for additional information concern-
ing related litigation.

2002 Operating Results

SALES
Guidant reported worldwide net sales of $3,160.6 million for 2002, an
increase of $519.0 million or 20% compared to 2001. Growth in unit
volume and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates increased net
sales by 19% and 1% with no significant impact from price changes.
Guidant experienced double-digit growth across all major product groups
and geographies driven by new product launches and enhanced distribu-
tion capability. US sales in 2002 were $2,230.2 million, representing
21% growth, while international sales were $930.4 million, representing
17% growth. 

Implantable Defibrillator Systems Worldwide sales of implantable
defibrillator systems for 2002 were $1,006.8 million, up $290.2 million
or 40% over 2001, primarily driven by unit volume growth. US
implantable defibrillator system sales climbed 43% to $821.7 million,
while international sales of $185.1 million were up 29% over the prior
year. Implantable defibrillator system sales were driven by:

- MADIT II clinical trial’s positive impact on the worldwide implantable
defibrillator market

- CONTAK CD/EASYTRAK CRT-D System, approved by the FDA and
launched in the US in May 2002

- CONTAK CD 2 CRT-D System, approved by the FDA and launched in
the US in October 2002

- Continued acceptance of Guidant’s PRIZM® family of implantable
defibrillator systems

- Next generation VITALITY Implantable Defibrillator System, launched 
in Europe in October 2002

Pacemaker Systems Worldwide pacemaker system sales were $636.6
million in 2002 compared to $582.7 million in 2001, representing 9%
growth. Sales in the US totaled $413.7 million, representing 9% growth
over 2001. The European market drove international sales of $222.9 mil-
lion, representing 9% growth over the prior year. Pacemaker system sales
were driven by the global launch of the INSIGNIA family of pacemakers
in June 2002. 

Coronary Stent Systems Worldwide coronary stent system revenues were
$920.9 million in 2002 compared to $811.2 million in 2001, represent-
ing 14% growth. Sales of coronary stent systems in the US were $628.5
million in 2002 compared to $584.5 million in the prior year.
International sales of coronary stent systems grew 29% over the prior
year to $292.4 million. Sales of coronary stent systems during 2002
were driven by:

- Continued acceptance of the MULTI-LINK PENTA Coronary Stent
System launched in the US in June 2001

- Fourth quarter 2001 US launch of MULTI-LINK PIXEL Coronary Stent
System

- September 2002 FDA approval and US launch of the MULTI-LINK
ZETA Coronary Stent System

- Strength of European sales due to the introduction of the MULTI-LINK
ZETA in May 2002 despite competitors’ introductions of drug eluting
stent therapy and a new metallic stent in the second quarter of 2002 

- Sales growth in Japan from Guidant’s MULTI-LINK TRISTAR Coronary
Stent System launched in the fourth quarter of 2001

Angioplasty Systems Angioplasty system sales totaled $430.5 million in
2002 compared to $403.5 million in 2001. Sales included the RX
CROSSSAIL and OTW OPENSAIL Coronary Dilatation Catheters.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS SUMMARY 
FOR AAA PRODUCT LINE AND BRAZIL OPERATIONS

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001

Net sales $18.2 $79.0 $66.0
Loss from discontinued operations 

before income taxes 127.8 79.5 60.5
Net loss from discontinued operations 95.2 56.3 39.4



Cardiac Surgery, Biliary, Peripheral and Carotid Systems Worldwide
sales of cardiac surgery, biliary, peripheral and carotid systems totaled
$165.8 million in 2002 compared to $127.6 million in 2001, represent-
ing 30% growth. Sales were driven by:

- VASOVIEW 5 Endoscopic Vessel Harvesting System, launched in the
US in March 2002

- AXIUS™ Vacuum 2 Stabilizers for performing beating heart surgery,
launched in the US in February 2002

- DYNALINK Self Expanding Biliary Stent System, RX HERCULINK™
PLUS Biliary Stent System and AGILTRAC Peripheral Dilatation
Catheter

- Increase in US cardiac surgery sales force and noncoronary stent 
sales force

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD
Cost of products sold was $762.8 million in 2002, or 24.1% of net
sales, compared to $623.3 million in 2001, or 23.6% of net sales. Cost
of products sold as a percentage of net sales was relatively unchanged as
a result of offsetting fluctuations. The impact of unfavorable foreign
exchange hedge results and reduced vascular intervention sales mix was
offset almost entirely by pricing and volume associated with implantable
defibrillator market growth and operational efficiencies. 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Research and development expense was $415.5 million in 2002, or
13.1% of net sales, compared to $362.3 million in 2001, or 13.7% of
net sales. Significant investments in research and development in 2002
included:

- Drug eluting stent research and development

- Advanced Patient Management applications

- Clinical trials to support the benefits of CRT devices for treating heart
failure

- Development of next-generation devices for cardiac rhythm manage-
ment and cardiac surgery products

IN-PROCESS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Guidant recorded pre-tax IPRD charges of $54.9 million in 2002 as
described in detail earlier. Pre-tax IPRD charges in 2001 totaled $15.0
million for non-approved embolic protection device technology purchased

from Metamorphic Surgical Devices, LLC. (See further information on busi-
ness combinations in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

SALES, MARKETING AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Sales, marketing and administrative expenses were $950.7 million in
2002, an increase of $162.1 million or 20.6% compared to 2001, pri-
marily due to sales growth and continued expansion of the sales force.
Guidant controlled spending as a percentage of sales – 30.1% in 2002
versus 29.9% in 2001. 

INTEREST
Net interest expense totaled $1.3 million in 2002 compared to $29.2
million in 2001. This $27.9 million decrease was driven by a lower aver-
age outstanding debt balance, increased interest income due to larger
balances in short-term cash investments, and lower interest rates on bor-
rowings in 2002 compared to 2001, in part due to a $175.0 million
interest rate swap agreement entered into in 2002 covering half of the
Company’s $350.0 million long-term notes. Guidant was in a net interest
income position for the first time in the fourth quarter of 2002. 

ROYALTIES
Net royalties expense totaled $54.0 million in 2002 compared to $41.6
million in 2001. Net royalty expense included royalty income of less than
$1.0 million in both years presented. The $12.4 million increase was pri-
marily due to increased sales of implantable defibrillator systems. 

AMORTIZATION
Amortization expense for goodwill and other intangible assets was $12.6
million for 2002, a decrease of $29.8 million compared to 2001. This
decrease in amortization expense was primarily due to the elimination of
goodwill amortization on January 1, 2002, as directed by Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.

OTHER EXPENSES
Net other expenses were $12.6 million in 2002, comprised primarily of
fixed asset and equity investment write-offs and losses on foreign
exchange contracts. There were no significant income items reflected in
this line item in 2002. Net other expenses totaled $4.0 million in 2001,
comprised of $8.1 million of write-offs of fixed assets, equity investments
and intangible assets, partially offset by $2.4 million in foreign exchange
contract gains. 
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LITIGATION 
Guidant recorded a net litigation benefit of $137.1 million in 2002
resulting from a $158.2 million award against Medtronic, Inc., partially
offset by other minor settlements. In 2001, Guidant recorded a net litiga-
tion benefit of $10.0 million from awards against Boston Scientific of
$19.5 million and Medtronic of $6.6 million offset by a settlement with
Cordis of $16.1 million. See also Part II, Item I, “Legal Proceedings.” 

COOK CHARGE
Guidant recognized $60.6 million of expense in 2002 as a result of the
termination of the Cook Group Inc. merger agreement including a $50.0
million contractually-defined termination payment plus accrued interest,
$6.6 million nonsaleable, nonreturnable Cook inventory and $3.8 million
in other merger-related expenses. Expense was recorded upon termination
of the merger agreement.

FOUNDATION CONTRIBUTION 
Guidant made contributions to the Guidant Foundation totaling $40.0
million in 2002 and $10.0 million in 2001. Guidant Foundation is a
non-profit organization that has common management with Guidant.
Guidant Foundation provides financial support and grants to non-profit
organizations for charitable and educational programs that improve the
quality of life for people who are at risk for or suffer from cardiovascular
disease. Guidant Foundation also provides financial support to non-profit
organizations in the communities where Guidant operates in the US.
Contributions are made possible by the profits of Guidant; however,
Guidant is not required to make contributions to the Foundation, except
for amounts pledged. 

RESTRUCTURING
Guidant recorded a $14.0 million charge for the restructuring of biliary
and peripheral product line operations approved by Guidant’s Board of
Directors in May 2002. The charge primarily relates to the termination of
Guidant’s involvement in certain peripheral product clinical trials.

SPECIAL PRODUCT CHARGE
In March 2001, Guidant recorded $7.5 million in expenses for the field
action related to the PRIZM Implantable Defibrillator System. The field
action concerned a specific memory component in the first-generation
device. Field inventory that contained the memory component was
returned to the Company and a software solution was designed to nonin-
vasively return functionality to any affected implanted device. 

INCOME TAX
Income tax expense for 2002 and 2001 was $250.6 million and $204.3
million, resulting in income tax rates of 27.3% and 28.1%. Following is
a reconciliation of income taxes at the US federal statutory rate to the
Company’s effective income tax rate:

(in millions) 2002 2OO1

Income from continuing operations 
before income tax $918.7 $727.7

Income tax expense at the US federal 
statutory rate of 35% $321.5 $254.7

State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 12.8 10.1
Effect of international operations (91.0) (63.3)
Research credit (10.0) (10.9)
Benefit from export incentives (9.3) (8.1)
Nondeductible IPRD 7.1 —
Other, net 19.5 21.8

Income tax expense $250.6 $204.3
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

(dollars in millions, except per share data) 2003 2002

Cash and cash equivalents (1) $1,468.2 $1,014.8
Working capital $2,017.5 $1,437.4
Current ratio 2.9:1.0 2.7:1.0
Net cash position (2) $  519.9 $  656.6
Shareholders’ equity per common share (3) $   8.68 $   7.59
Days receivable outstanding (4) 78 69
Inventory turnover 2.59 2.79

(1) A substantial portion of cash and cash equivalents is indefinitely invested in Guidant’s non-US
subsidiaries.

(2) Net cash position is the sum of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments less 
total debt.

(3) Represents total shareholders’ equity divided by weighted average shares outstanding-diluted.

(4) Days receivable outstanding remained within Guidant’s historical range. Increase in 2003 was 
due to the increased mix of international and cardiac rhythm management product sales that his-
torically have had longer payment practices.



2003/2002
Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by $637.4 million in
2003 primarily due to:

- $154.0 million decrease in net income in 2003 compared to 2002,
adjusted for non-cash items

- $110.3 million decrease in income taxes payable in 2003 due to lower
net income and a $30.0 million adjustment made in the fourth quarter
of 2003 

- Decrease in other liabilities including 2003 payments of 2002 accru-
als for a $50.0 million termination fee to Cook, a $30.0 million
ANCURE litigation accrual (remaining ANCURE litigation of $62.4 mil-
lion accrued and paid in 2003), and a $14.0 million payment to
Guidant Foundation ($40.0 million accrued in 2003).

Net cash used in investing activities increased by $172.9 million in
2003 primarily due to:

- $63.6 million for the acquisition of X Technologies, Inc.

- $108.2 million increase in net additions of property and equipment
and other assets, including the termination of a lease and purchase of
the related land and buildings

- $35.2 million for the purchase of a MediVas subsidiary

- $27.6 million for the asset purchase and related milestone payment to
Biosensors

- $10.0 million for the purchase of Bioabsorbable Vascular Solutions

Net cash provided by financing activities was $380.6 million in 2003,
compared to net cash used of $353.2 million in 2002, a change of
$733.8 million due to:

- $579.1 million increase in borrowings in 2003 compared to net pay-
ments of $393.1 million in 2002 

- $106.7 million increase in issuances of common stock for stock option
exercises

partially offset by:

- $73.7 million in dividend payments in 2003

- $271.4 million increase in repurchase of common stock including
$250.0 million related to the previously announced stock buy-back
program of 4.7 million shares and $21.4 million related to shares
withheld from restricted stock recipients upon vesting to satisfy related
tax obligations 

The effect of exchange rate changes on cash decreased $47.1 million in
2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to decreasing Euro cash holdings
in 2003 compared to 2002. 

2002/2001
Net cash provided by operating activities increased $361.7 million in
2002 primarily due to:

- $86.1 million increase in net income in 2002 compared to 2001,
adjusted for non-cash items

- Increase in other liabilities including a $50.0 million termination fee
to Cook incurred in 2002, paid in 2003; a $40.0 million increase in
the payable to Guidant Foundation; a $30.0 million ANCURE litigation
accrual; and a $28.5 million increase in accrued royalties 

- Increase in accounts payable and accruals primarily due to a higher
bonus accrual for fiscal year 2002

Net cash used in investing activities increased $37.9 million in 2002
primarily due to:

- $43.2 million increase related to payments made to Novartis and
Cardiac Intelligence Corporation

partially offset by:

- $15.7 million decrease in net additions of property and equipment and
other assets in 2002 compared to 2001

Net cash used in financing activities increased $135.7 million in 2002
primarily due to:

- $348.0 million increase in debt payments
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SUMMARY OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001

Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $406.8 $1,044.2 $682.5
Investing activities (392.5) (219.6) (181.7)
Financing activities 380.6 (353.2) (217.5)
Effect of exchange rate changes 

on cash 58.5 105.6 (8.5)
Net increase in cash and cash 

equivalents $453.4 $  577.0 $274.8
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partially offset by:

- $199.6 million decrease in the repurchase of common stock

The effect of exchange rate changes on cash increased $114.1 million in
2002 compared to 2001 primarily due to the strengthening of the Euro
and Guidant’s increasing asset base offshore. 

COMMITMENTS
Scheduled payments at December 31, 2003, for long-term debt, other
noncurrent liabilities and operating leases include the following:

At December 31, 2003, the Company had outstanding borrowings of
$948.3 million at a weighted average interest rate of 1.89%, including
bank borrowings, commercial paper, $350.0 million principal balance in
long-term notes due in 2006 and interest rate swap agreements valued at
$6.9 million. Bank borrowings represent short-term uncommitted credit
facilities with commercial banks. The commercial paper borrowings are
supported by two credit facilities aggregating $800.0 million. There are
currently no outstanding borrowings under these facilities. The Company
classified $250.0 million as short-term debt at December 31, 2003. The
Company believes that cash and cash equivalent balances will be ade-
quate to fund maturities of short-term borrowings, obligations to make
interest payments on its debt and other anticipated operating cash needs
for 2004, including planned capital expenditures of approximately
$180.0 million in 2004. 

Certain of Guidant’s acquisitions involve contingent consideration.
Payment of the additional consideration is generally contingent upon
reaching performance-related milestones, including specified revenue lev-
els, product development targets or regulatory approvals or filings. At
December 31, 2003, Guidant’s accrual for milestone obligations totaled
$10.8 million and will be paid during the next three years. In addition,
future undiscounted contingent consideration for performance-related
milestones on acquisitions of up to $498.2 million could be paid through

2010, depending on when and if milestones are attained. Potential mile-
stone payments under existing agreements during the next 12 months
range from $2.5 million to $202.8 million. The Company continues to
evaluate business development opportunities, which may generate addi-
tional payments.

MARKET RISK DISCLOSURES
The overall objective of Guidant’s financial risk management policy is to
reduce the potential negative earnings effect from the impact of fluctuat-
ing foreign currencies and interest rates. The primary feature of Guidant’s
risk management philosophy is that all hedging activity must be designed
to reduce financial risks associated with commercial and financial trans-
actions that arise in the ordinary course of business. Guidant utilizes for-
eign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap agreements to
minimize the impact of fluctuating foreign currencies and interest rates.
The contracts are initiated within the guidelines of documented corporate
risk management policies. Guidant does not use financial instruments for
speculative or trading activities.   

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
Due to Guidant’s commitment to a global presence and customer support,
the Company conducts a portion of its business in various foreign curren-
cies (primarily the currencies of Europe and Asia) and, as a result, a por-
tion of revenues and earnings are exposed to changes in foreign exchange
rates. Such exposures arise from transactions denominated in foreign cur-
rencies, primarily intercompany loans and cross-border intercompany pur-
chases of inventory, as well as from the translation of results of opera-
tions from outside the US. The Company seeks to manage its foreign
exchange risk in part through operational means, including managing
local currency assets in relation to local currency liabilities. 

Foreign exchange risk is also managed through the use of foreign exchange
contracts. The fair value of all foreign exchange contracts outstanding was
($46.8) million and ($31.3) million at December 31, 2003 and 2002. An
analysis was prepared to estimate the sensitivity of the fair value of all for-
eign exchange contracts to hypothetical 10% favorable and unfavorable
changes in exchange rates at December 31, 2003 and 2002. The results
of the estimation, which may vary from actual results, are as follows:

SCHEDULED PAYMENTS:

LESS THAN 1-3 4-5 THERE-
(in millions) 1 YEAR YEARS YEARS AFTER TOTAL

Long-term debt $250.0 $698.3 — — $  948.3
Other noncurrent 

liabilities — 101.8 $ 2.6 $61.7 166.1
Operating leases 33.0 52.6 24.0 3.4 113.0

$283.0 $852.7 $26.6 $65.1 $1,227.4

FAIR VALUE OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

(in millions) 2003 2002

10% adverse rate movement ($97.4) ($106.0)
At year-end rates ($46.8) ($ 31.3)
10% favorable rate movement $ 3.8 $ 43.5



Any gains and losses in fair value of foreign exchange contracts would be
largely offset by losses and gains on underlying transactions or anticipat-
ed transactions. These offsetting gains and losses are not reflected in the
above table.

INTEREST RATE RISK
The Company’s financial instruments are exposed to interest rate risk.
During 2003, Guidant had two interest rate swap agreements to modify the
interest characteristic of the principal amount of its long-term notes so that
the interest payable on long-term notes effectively becomes variable and
thus matches the variable interest rate received from its cash. Accordingly,
interest rate fluctuations impact the fair value of the Company’s long-term
notes outstanding, which are offset by corresponding changes in the fair
value of the interest rate swap agreements. Since the Company is in a net
cash position, the interest rate swap agreements reduce exposure to float-
ing rate risk. An analysis of the impact on the Company’s interest rate sen-
sitive financial instruments to a hypothetical 10% change in short-term
interest rates compared to interest rates at year end showed no significant
impact on earnings or cash. The fair value of the interest rate swap agree-
ments was $6.9 million at December 31, 2003.   

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
It is important to understand Guidant’s accounting policies in order to
understand its financial statements. In preparing the financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, management
must often make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclosures
at the date of the financial statements and during the reporting period.
Some of those judgments can be subjective and complex. Consequently,
actual results could differ from those estimates. The accounting policies
that are most subject to important estimates or assumptions include those
described below. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
further description of these items.

Guidant continually evaluates the accounting policies and estimates it
uses to prepare the consolidated financial statements. In cases where
management estimates are used, they are based on historical experience,
information from third-party professionals and various other assumptions
believed to be reasonable.

Inventory Reserves The Company values its inventory at the lower of
cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. Reserves are estimated for
excess, slow moving and obsolete inventory as well as inventory with a
carrying value in excess of its net realizable value. Write-offs are recorded

when product is destroyed. The Company reviews inventory on hand at
least quarterly and records provisions for excess and obsolete inventory
based on several factors, including current assessment of future product
demand, anticipated release of new products into the market, historical
experience and product expiration. The Company’s industry is character-
ized by rapid product development and frequent new product introduc-
tions. Uncertain timing of product approvals, variability in product launch
strategies, product recalls and variation in product utilization all impact
the estimates related to excess and obsolete inventory. 

Product Warranties Provisions for estimated expenses related to prod-
uct warranties are recorded at the time the products are sold. Estimates
for warranty costs are calculated based primarily upon historical warranty
experience, but may include assumptions related to anticipated changes
in warranty costs and failure rates. Assumptions and historical warranty
experience are evaluated on at least a quarterly basis to determine the
continued appropriateness of such assumptions. Warranty cost accruals
are adjusted from time to time when warranty claim experience differs
from estimates. 

Valuation of Purchased In-Process Research and Development (IPRD),

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets When a business combination
occurs, the purchase price is allocated based upon the fair value of tangi-
ble assets, intangible assets, IPRD and goodwill. The Company recognizes
IPRD in business combinations for the portion of the purchase price allo-
cated to the appraised value of in-process technologies, defined as those
technologies relating to products that have not received FDA approval and
have no alternative future use. The portion assigned to in-process tech-
nologies excludes the value of core and developed technologies, which are
recognized as intangible assets when purchased. Valuations require the
use of significant estimates. The amount of the purchase price allocated
to IPRD is determined by estimating future cash flows of the technology
and discounting net cash flows back to present values. The Company con-
siders, among other things, the projects’ stage of completion, complexity
of the work completed as of the acquisition date, costs already incurred,
projected costs to complete, contribution of core technologies and other
acquired assets, expected introduction date and the estimated useful life
of the technology. The discount rate used to arrive at a present value as of
the date of acquisition is based on the time value of money and medical
technology investment risk. Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair
value of identifiable net assets of the business acquired and the amount
allocated to IPRD. The methodologies used in arriving at these estimates
are in accordance with accepted valuation methods.
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Income Taxes All income tax amounts reflect the use of the liability
method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are deter-
mined based on the expected future tax consequences of temporary dif-
ferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for finan-
cial and income tax reporting purposes. 

Guidant operates in multiple tax jurisdictions with different tax rates and
must determine the allocation of income to each of these jurisdictions
based on estimates and assumptions. In the normal course of business,
the Company will undergo scheduled reviews by taxing authorities regard-
ing the amount of taxes due. These reviews include questions regarding
the timing and amount of deductions and the allocation of income among
various tax jurisdictions. Tax reviews often require an extended period of
time to resolve and may result in income tax adjustments if changes to
the allocation are required between jurisdictions with different tax rates. 

Legal Proceedings and Other Loss Contingencies The Company is sub-
ject to various legal proceedings, many involving routine litigation inci-
dental to the business. Other matters contain allegations that are not rou-
tine and involve compensatory, punitive or treble damage claims, or
claims for injunctive relief related to alleged infringement of a third
party’s patents, or seek declarations affecting the validity of the
Company’s patents. Litigation outcomes are not within the Company’s
complete control, are often very difficult to predict and often are resolved
over long periods of time. Estimating probable losses requires the analy-
sis of multiple possible outcomes that often depend on judgments about
potential actions by third parties. Contingencies are recorded in the con-
solidated financial statements, or otherwise disclosed, in accordance with
SFAS 5, Accounting for Contingencies. 

REGULATORY AND OTHER MATTERS
Government and private sector programs designed to reduce healthcare
costs, including coverage and payment policies, pricing regulations, com-
petitive pricing and various types of managed-care arrangements, exist in
the US and in many other countries where the Company does business.
Government and private policies and programs require healthcare
providers to put significant emphasis on the delivery of more cost-effec-
tive medical therapies. After the Company develops a promising new
product and receives regulatory approval to sell it, the Company may find
limited demand for it until the Company obtains reimbursement approval
from private and governmental third party payors. While the Company is
actively involved in the policy dialogue concerning cost containment,

uncertainty as to the outcome of current and prospective legislative and
regulatory initiatives and further changes in the marketplace preclude the
Company from predicting the impact on future operating results.

Further, many hospitals and other customers of medical device manufac-
turers have formed large purchasing groups to enhance purchasing power
and become more cost-effective in the delivery of healthcare. The med-
ical device industry has also consolidated rapidly to offer a broader range
of products to these purchasers. Transactions with these purchasing
groups are often more significant, more complex, and involve more long-
term contracts than in the past. Purchasing groups’ enhanced purchasing
power may further increase the pressure on product pricing.

In addition to payor cost pressure, the Company also faces intense com-
petition in its highly dynamic markets. A substantial portion of the
Company’s revenues is derived from products less than a year old.
Continued success requires sustained excellence in product development,
approval, production and marketing, particularly in rapidly developing
fields like drug eluting stents and treatments for heart failure. An inter-
ruption at any step in the process can significantly affect operating
results.

The Company’s products are subject to extensive regulation in the US by
the FDA, by certain state authorities and internationally by foreign gov-
ernmental authorities. The Company must obtain specific approval or
clearance from the FDA before it can market products in the US. Similar
requirements also exist in certain foreign jurisdictions. The process of
obtaining such approvals or clearances can be onerous and costly and
typically requires the Company to demonstrate new product safety and
efficacy. There is no assurance that all approvals and clearances sought
by the Company will be granted on a timely basis, if at all.

Further, regulatory oversight includes stringent ongoing requirements,
including restrictions relating to products in the market, quality system
regulations and delivery of Company products, particularly when govern-
ment-funded reimbursement is sought. If the FDA, the US Department of
Health and Human Services (HHS) or other regulators believe that a com-
pany is not in compliance with applicable regulations, substantial sanc-
tions can be imposed. The various US and international regulators can,
among other things, issue warning letters, issue recall orders, institute
proceedings to detain or seize products, impose operating restrictions,
enjoin future violations, assess civil penalties, recommend criminal prose-



cution or seek exclusion from participation as a supplier of products to
beneficiaries covered by government reimbursement.

The regulatory environment is subject to rapid developments. For exam-
ple, HHS regulations that affect the way the Company’s products are sold
are evolving quickly. Similarly, the Japanese Ministry of Health, Labor
and Welfare (MHLW) will begin to transition some of its approval over-
sight responsibilities to a new agency during the first quarter of 2004,
which introduces uncertainty concerning product approvals and interac-
tions concerning products on the market. Changes in domestic and for-
eign regulations, regulatory oversight and enforcement policies can sub-
stantially impact the Company’s operations.

The operations of the Company, like those of other medical device com-
panies, involve the use of substances regulated under environmental
laws, primarily in manufacturing and sterilization processes. While it is
difficult to quantify, the Company believes that the ongoing impact of
compliance with environmental protection laws and regulations will not
have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations.

The Company operates in an industry susceptible to significant legal
claims. At any given time, the Company generally is involved as both a
plaintiff and defendant in a number of patent infringement actions.
Patent litigation can result in significant royalty or other payments or
result in injunctions that can prevent the sale of products. The Company
also is subject to product liability claims, including class actions from
time to time. See Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information.

FIELD ACTIONS
From time to time, the Company initiates field actions with respect to
market-released products. These actions may include product recalls or
communications with a significant number of physicians about a product
or labeling issue. The scope of such actions can range from very minor
issues affecting a small number of units to more significant actions. The
Company conducted the following field actions since the Company’s last
filing on Form 10-Q. 

In November 2003, certain manufacturing lots of the VASOVIEW 5
Endoscopic Vessel Harvesting System were recalled due to an occasional
malfunction of the toggle on the electrocautery scissors component of the
system. The Company notified the FDA and took appropriate corrective

action to address the issue and resumed shipment of the VASOVIEW 5
System in November.

In January and February 2004, the Company communicated to field per-
sonnel and physicians that it had filed and received FDA approval for
labeling changes including downward revisions of longevity estimates
from approximately 10% to 25% for certain implantable defibrillator
products. The revised longevity estimates remain competitive within the
industry. The communication also noted that the improved battery life
test modeling that developed these revised estimates indicated that
newer generation implantable defibrillators are expected to meet their
predicted longevities. Existing warranty accruals are appropriate.

CAUTIONARY FACTORS
Certain statements made in this Annual Report (including the President’s
letter) are forward-looking, including accounting estimates, expectations
with respect to announced transactions, statements concerning pricing
and sales trends, drug eluting stent development, recovery of tax assets
and the outcome of other tax matters, capital expenditures, cash flows,
costs of research programs, the timing of discontinued operations and the
timing of product developments. The statements are based on assump-
tions about many important factors, including assumptions concerning:

- The development of the coronary stent market: Drug eluting stents
present a significant growth opportunity; however, the earlier introduc-
tion of drug eluting stents by the Company’s competitors has substan-
tially affected the market for metallic coronary stents and will continue
to impact the Company’s financial results. 

- The effects of operating in a highly regulated industry, the necessity for
appropriate reimbursement of therapies and the significance of legal
claims in Guidant’s industry, all as further described above in
“Regulatory and Other Matters.”

- Product development and production factors (including the uncertain-
ties associated with clinical trials), competitive factors (including the
introduction of new products and alternative therapies), business
development factors, internal factors (including the retention of key
employees and changes in business strategies) and others, all as fur-
ther described in Exhibit 99 to the Company’s filing on Form 10-K,
which is incorporated herein by reference.

Actual results may differ materially. The Company does not undertake to
update its forward-looking statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Income
GUIDANT CORPORATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31  (in millions, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001

Net sales $3,698.8 $3,160.6 $2,641.6

Cost of products sold 903.8 762.8 623.3

Gross profit 2,795.0 2,397.8 2,018.3

Research and development 518.4 415.5 362.3

Purchased in-process research and development 83.7 54.9 15.0

Sales, marketing and administrative 1,198.9 950.7 788.6

Interest, net (6.3) 1.3 29.2

Royalties, net 63.9 54.0 41.6

Amortization 20.9 12.6 42.4

Other, net 7.7 12.6 4.0

Litigation, net 422.8 (137.1)   (10.0)

Foundation contribution — 40.0 10.0

Cook charge — 60.6 —

Restructuring charge — 14.0 —

Special product charge — — 7.5

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 485.0 918.7 727.7

Income taxes 59.5 250.6 204.3

Income from continuing operations 425.5 668.1 523.4

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (95.2) (56.3) (39.4)

Net income $  330.3 $ 611.8 $  484.0

Earnings per share—basic

Income from continuing operations $   1.39 $  2.21 $    1.74

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (0.31) (0.18) (0.13)

Net income $    1.08 $  2.03 $    1.61 

Earnings per share—diluted

Income from continuing operations $    1.36 $ 2.18 $    1.71

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (0.30) (0.18) (0.13)

Net income $    1.06 $  2.00 $    1.58

Dividends declared per common share $    0.24 — —

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Consolidated Balance Sheets
GUIDANT CORPORATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31  (in millions, except share data) 2003 2002

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $1,468.2 $1,014.8

Short-term investments — 10.3

Accounts receivable, net of allowances

of $24.0 (2003) and $29.5 (2002) 832.3 689.1

Inventories 402.9 295.7

Deferred income taxes 313.2 210.0

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 57.7 63.1

Current assets of discontinued operations 5.6 20.2

Total Current Assets 3,079.9 2,303.2

Other Assets

Goodwill, net of allowances 

of $157.9 (2003) and $157.7 (2002) 512.9 514.0

Other intangible assets, net of allowances 

of $82.3 (2003) and $60.3 (2002) 162.2 93.2

Deferred income taxes 0.9 53.9

Investments 55.1 46.8

Sundry 60.9 50.4

Other assets of discontinued operations 0.2 11.5

Total Other Assets 792.2 769.8

Property and equipment, net 768.0 643.1

Total Assets $4,640.1 $3,716.1
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
GUIDANT CORPORATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31  (in millions, except share data) 2003 2002

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $    86.1 $    68.4

Employee compensation 199.4 188.9

Other liabilities 309.5 309.8

Income taxes payable 197.2 248.3

Short-term debt 250.0 6.8

Current liabilities of discontinued operations 20.2 43.6

Total Current Liabilities 1,062.4 865.8

Noncurrent Liabilities

Long-term debt 698.3 361.7

Other 166.1 166.8

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 864.4 528.5

Commitments and Contingencies — —

Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred stock:

Authorized shares: 50,000,000

Issued shares: none — —

Common stock, no par value:

Authorized shares: 1,000,000,000

Issued shares: 312,129,000 (2003)

308,992,000 (2002) 301.5 226.1

Additional paid-in capital 242.4 200.7

Retained earnings 2,258.9 2,002.3

Deferred cost, ESOP (17.1) (24.2)

Unearned compensation (25.2) —

Treasury stock, at cost:

Shares: 3,158,000 (2003)

2,388,000 (2002) (171. 2) (92.0)

Accumulated other comprehensive income 124.0 8.9

Total Shareholders’ Equity 2,713.3 2,321.8

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $4,640.1 $3,716.1

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
GUIDANT CORPORATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31  (in millions, except per share data)

ACCUMULATED
ADDITIONAL DEFERRED OTHER

COMMON STOCK PAID-IN RETAINED COST, ESOP TREASURY UNEARNED COMPREHENSIVE
ISSUED SHARES AMOUNT CAPITAL EARNINGS SHARES AMOUNT STOCK COMPENSATION INCOME/(LOSS) TOTAL

DECEMBER 31, 2000 308,476,000 $214.9 $167.8 $  906.5 (5,308,000) ($ 35.4) — — ($ 70.3) $1,183.5 

Comprehensive income:
Net income 484.0 484.0 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:

Currency translation adjustments (15.9)
Minimum pension liability (2.6)
Unrealized gain on foreign 

exchange contracts 15.0 
Other comprehensive loss (3.5)

Comprehensive income 480.5 
Issuance of common stock 

under stock plans 543,000 11.2 (30.4) $51.0 31.8 
Repurchase of common stock (200.0) (200.0)
ESOP transactions 25.2 730,000 4.9 30.1 
Tax benefits from employee stock options 19.9 19.9

DECEMBER 31, 2001 309,019,000 226.1 182.5 1,390.5 (4,578,000) (30.5) (149.0) — (73.8) 1,545.8 

Comprehensive income:
Net income 611.8 611.8 
Other comprehensive gain, net of tax:

Currency translation adjustments 118.1
Minimum pension liability (15.8)
Unrealized loss on foreign 

exchange contracts (19.6)
Other comprehensive gain 82.7 

Comprehensive income 694.5 
Issuance of common stock 

under stock plans (27,000) (10.2) 37.6 27.4 
Stock issued through Employee 

Stock Purchase Plan (3.9) 19.8 15.9 
Repurchase of common stock (0.4) (0.4)
ESOP transactions 27.3 951,000 6.3 33.6 
Tax benefits from employee stock options 5.0 5.0 

DECEMBER 31, 2002 308,992,000 226.1 200.7 2,002.3 (3,627,000) (24.2) (92.0) — 8.9 2,321.8 

Comprehensive income:
Net income 330.3 330.3 
Other comprehensive gain, net of tax:

Currency translation adjustments 132.6
Minimum pension liability (4.9)
Unrealized loss on foreign exchange 

contracts (12.6)
Other comprehensive gain 115.1 

Comprehensive income 445.4 
Issuance/cancellation of common stock 

under stock plans 2,637,000 60.9 (36.6) 185.4 209.7 
Stock issued through Employee 

Stock Purchase Plan 500,000 14.5 (2.4) 7.2 19.3 
Repurchase of common stock (271.8) (271.8)
Cash dividends (73.7) (73.7)
Unearned compensation ($ 25.2) (25.2)
ESOP transactions 37.9 1,059,000 7.1 45.0 
Tax benefits from employee stock plans 42.8 42.8 

DECEMBER 31, 2003 312,129,000 $301.5 $242.4 $2,258.9 (2,568,000) ($ 17.1) ($171.2) ($ 25.2) $124.0 $2,713.3 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
GUIDANT CORPORATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31  (in millions) 2003 2002 2001

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $  330.3 $ 611.8 $484.0

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 129.8 114.4 97.1
Amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets 20.9 13.2 43.9
Provision for inventory and accounts receivable losses 59.3 72.7 72.4
Purchased in-process research and development 83.7 55.2 15.0
Deferred income taxes (63.0) (45.0) (14.9)
Compensation earned under restricted stock and ESOP 101.8 36.7 34.3
Other noncash, net 19.9 (22.3) 18.8

682.7 836.7 750.6

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables (76.6) (63.1) (72.9)
Inventories (123.2) (80.1) (106.2)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (13.5) (22.5) (8.2)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 25.2 89.3 (7.3)
Income taxes payable (11.5) 98.8 84.7
Other liabilities (76.3) 185.1 41.8

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 406.8 1,044.2 682.5

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment purchases (15.8) (22.8) (10.3)
Sale/maturity of investments 13.2 8.9 6.8
Additions of property and equipment, net (249.3) (141.1) (149.1)
Additions of other assets, net (2.2) (10.4) (18.1)
Purchase of in-process research and development (74.8) (54.2) (11.0)
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (63.6) — —

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (392.5) (219.6) (181.7)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in borrowings, net 579.1 (393.1) (45.1)
Issuance of common stock under stock plans and other capital transactions 147.0 40.3 27.6
Dividends paid (73.7) — —
Repurchase of common stock (271.8) (0.4) (200.0)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Financing Activities 380.6 (353.2) (217.5)

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 58.5 105.6 (8.5)

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 453.4 577.0 274.8

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,014.8 437.8 163.0

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $1,468.2 $1,014.8 $437.8

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Note 1  BUSINESS AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Guidant Corporation pioneers lifesaving technology for millions of cardiac
and vascular patients worldwide. Guidant develops, manufactures and
markets the following products and services that enable less-invasive care
for some of life’s most threatening medical conditions: 

- Implantable defibrillator systems used to detect and treat abnormally
fast heart rhythms (tachycardia), including implantable cardiac resyn-
chronization therapy defibrillator (CRT-D) systems used to treat heart
failure

- Implantable pacemaker systems used to manage slow or irregular heart
rhythms (bradycardia), including implantable cardiac resynchronization
therapy pacemaker (CRT-P) systems used to treat heart failure

- Coronary stent systems for the treatment of coronary artery disease

- Angioplasty systems including dilatation catheters, intravascular radio-
therapy systems and related accessories for the treatment of coronary
artery disease

- Cardiac surgery systems for the treatment of coronary artery disease
and biliary, peripheral and carotid systems used to treat biliary and
artery disease

Guidant has principal operations in the US, Europe and Asia. The
Company markets its products in nearly 100 countries through a direct
sales force in the US and a combination of direct sales representatives
and independent distributors in international markets. As used herein,
the terms “the Company” and “Guidant” mean Guidant Corporation and
its consolidated subsidiaries.

Note 2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of Guidant and all of its wholly owned subsidiaries.
Significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. 

Revenue Recognition Guidant sells products through a direct sales force
in the US and a combination of direct sales representatives and inde-
pendent distributors in international markets. A significant portion of rev-
enue is generated from inventory carried by Guidant’s sales representa-
tives and consigned inventory held by customers, which is recognized as
revenue upon notification of implant or product usage. All other revenue
transactions are recorded upon transfer of title and risk of loss to cus-

tomers. There are no remaining obligations that affect the customer’s
final acceptance of the sale upon transfer of title. Estimated sales
returns, discounts and rebates are recorded as a reduction of sales when
the related revenue is recognized. The Company provides credit to its
customers in the normal course of business and maintains an allowance
for doubtful customer accounts. Actual losses are charged to this
allowance when incurred. 

Research and Development Research and development costs are charged
to expense as incurred. In-process research and development (IPRD) is
recognized in business combinations for the portion of the purchase 
price allocated to the appraised value of in-process technologies, defined
as those technologies relating to products that have not received FDA
approval and have no alternative future use, consistent with Statement 
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 2, Accounting for Research 
and Development Costs, and Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation 4, Applicability of SFAS 2 to Business Combinations. The
portion assigned to in-process technologies excludes the value of core and
developed technologies, which are recognized as intangible assets when
purchased. Valuations require the use of significant estimates. The amount
of the purchase price allocated to IPRD is determined by discounting the
estimated amount of future net cash flows from the technology to its pres-
ent value. The discount rate used is determined at the time of the acquisi-
tion and includes, among other things, consideration of the assessed risk
of the project not being developed to a stage of commercial feasibility. 

Foreign Currency Translation Sales and expenses denominated in for-
eign currencies are translated at average exchange rates in effect during
the year. Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into US
dollars using the exchange rates in effect at year end. Foreign currency
transaction gains and losses are included in the consolidated statements
of income as “other, net.” Adjustments arising from the translation of net
assets located outside the US (gains and losses) are shown as a compo-
nent of accumulated other comprehensive income. 

Risk Management Contracts The Company recognizes all derivative
financial instruments in the consolidated financial statements at fair value
in accordance with SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities. The Company employs foreign exchange forward con-
tracts and interest rate swap agreements to manage its earnings exposure
to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.
Forward contracts hedging forecasted transactions are designated as cash
flow hedges and recorded as assets or liabilities at fair value. Changes 
in the forward contracts’ fair value are recognized in accumulated other
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comprehensive income until they are recognized in earnings at the time the
forecasted transaction occurs. If the forecasted transaction does not occur,
or it becomes probable that it will not occur, the gain or loss on the related
hedge is recognized in earnings at that time. The ineffective portion of a
contract’s change in fair value is immediately recognized in earnings. These
gains and losses are classified in the income statement consistent with the
accounting treatment of the item being hedged. Forward contracts hedging
specific foreign currency denominated assets or liabilities are recorded at
their fair value with the related gains and losses included in “other, net” on
the income statement. Results of these forward contracts offset in full or in
part the gains and losses from the mark to market of the underlying bal-
ance sheet exposure. Guidant has interest rate swap agreements that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges and meet the short-cut method
requirements of SFAS 133. As a result, changes in the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements are offset by changes in the fair value of the
long-term notes. These changes are reported in interest expense; according-
ly, no net gain or loss is recognized in earnings. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents All highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.
These investments are valued at cost, which approximates fair value. 

Investments Investments in debt and equity securities that have readily
determinable fair values are classified and accounted for as available-for-
sale or held-to-maturity.  Held-to-maturity investments consist principally
of government debt securities that management has the intent and ability
to hold until maturity. These securities are carried at amortized cost.
Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value with unrealized gains
and losses recorded as a separate component of accumulated other com-
prehensive income. Realized gains are calculated based on the specific
identification method and recorded in “other, net” on the income state-
ment. All other investments are accounted for under the cost or equity
method and are written off upon identification of declines in value that
are other than temporary. 

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, (first-in, first-out
method) or market. Reserves are estimated for excess, slow moving and
obsolete inventory as well as inventory with a carrying value in excess of its
net realizable value. Write-offs are recorded when product is destroyed. The
Company reviews inventory on hand at least quarterly and records provi-
sions for excess and obsolete inventory based on several factors, including
current assessment of future product demand, anticipated release of new
products into the market, historical experience and product expiration.
There have been no significant sales of inventory for which a provision was

previously established and provisions and write-offs have historically had a
strong correlation. Inventories at December 31 consisted of the following: 

The increase in inventories was primarily due to cardiac rhythm manage-
ment products driven by the market growth of implantable defibrillators,
a management decision to carry increased levels of certain key compo-
nents and inventories associated with Guidant’s growing US sales force. 

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill represents the excess of
cost over fair value of identifiable net assets of businesses acquired.
Other intangible assets consist primarily of purchased technology and
patents. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently as
impairment indicators arise. The test for impairment involves the use of
estimates related to the fair values of Guidant’s four reporting units based
on projected discounted cash flows. If the fair value is calculated to be
less than the carrying amount, an impairment charge is recorded in the
period identified. Other intangible assets are amortized using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives, of which periods of up to
eight years remain.

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are stated at histori-
cal cost. Additions and improvements are capitalized. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.
Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method at rates intended to
depreciate the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives ranging
from 3 to 40 years. Property and equipment at December 31 consisted of
the following:

2003 2002

Finished products $173.9 $133.6
Work-in-process 81.5 58.0
Raw materials and supplies 147.5 104.1

$402.9 $295.7

2003 2002

Land $   44.6 $33.0
Buildings 397.1 340.2
Equipment 874.0 749.6
Construction in progress 118.5 70.6

1,434.2 1,193.4
Less allowances for depreciation 666.2 550.3

$ 768.0 $ 643.1



Long-Lived Assets Management periodically reviews the carrying amount
of property and equipment and other intangible assets to assess potential
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amount may not be recoverable. The determination includes
evaluation of factors such as current market value, future asset utiliza-
tion, business climate, and future cash flows expected to result from the
use of the related assets. The Company’s policy is to use undiscounted
cash flows in assessing potential impairment and to record an impair-
ment loss in the period when it is determined that the carrying amount of
the asset may not be recoverable.

Product Warranties Provisions for estimated expenses related to prod-
uct warranties are recorded at the time the products are sold. Estimates
for warranty costs are calculated based primarily upon historical warranty
experience, but may include assumptions related to anticipated changes
in warranty costs and failure rates. A summary of the changes in the
product warranty activity is as follows:

Income Taxes All income tax amounts reflect the use of the liability
method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are deter-
mined based on the expected future tax consequences of temporary dif-
ferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for finan-
cial and income tax reporting purposes. 

Earnings Per Share Earnings per share-basic is computed by dividing
net income by the weighted average common shares outstanding during
the year. Earnings per share-diluted represents net income divided by the
sum of the weighted average common shares outstanding plus potential
dilutive instruments such as stock options and unvested restricted stock.
The effect of stock options on earnings per share-diluted is determined
through the application of the treasury stock method, whereby proceeds
received by the Company based on assumed exercises are hypothetically
used to repurchase the Company’s common stock at the average market
price during the period. Stock options that would have an anti-dilutive
effect on earnings per share are excluded from the calculations. 

Stock-Based Compensation The Company has adopted the disclosure-
only provisions of SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,
as amended by SFAS 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure. Accordingly, the Company accounts for stock-
based compensation under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations,
using the intrinsic value method. The following table illustrates the effect
on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the
fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to all stock-based employee
compensation. The fair value was estimated as of the grant date using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, the attribution method and the
assumptions described in Note 5. The Black-Scholes option-pricing
model does not consider the non-traded nature of employee stock
options, nor the restrictions on trading, the lack of transferability or a
vesting period. If the model took these items into consideration, the
resulting estimate for fair value of the stock option could be different.
The pro forma impact on net income assumes a forfeiture rate of approxi-
mately 10%. These pro forma amounts may not be representative of the
effects on reported net income for future years due to the uncertainty of
stock option grant volume and potential changes in assumptions driven
by market factors. 

Use of Estimates Preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the US
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.
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2003 2002 2001

Reported net income (1) $330.3 $611.8 $484.0

Deduct: Total stock option employee 
compensation expense, net of tax 64.3 94.8 119.0

Pro forma net income $266.0 $517.0 $365.0

Earnings per share:

Basic—as reported $ 1.08 $ 2.03 $ 1.61

Basic—pro forma $ 0.87 $ 1.71 $ 1.21

Diluted—as reported $ 1.06 $ 2.00 $ 1.58

Diluted—pro forma $ 0.85 $ 1.69 $ 1.19

(1) Reported amounts include expense associated with the restricted stock awards. See Note 5 for
additional information.

2003 2002

January 1 $18.8 $20.2
Provisions for product warranties 12.3 5.0
Settlements during the period (8.8) (6.4)

December 31 $22.3 $18.8



Reclassifications Certain prior year amounts in the consolidated financial
statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year presenta-
tion. In June 2003, the Company announced that it would dispose of the
ANCURE ENDOGRAFT System product line to treat abdominal aortic
aneurysms (AAA). The Company also approved a plan to discontinue oper-
ations in Brazil in December 2003. The AAA product line and Brazil oper-
ations are reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

New Accounting Pronouncements SFAS 149, Amendment of Statement
133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, was issued in April
2003 and amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embed-
ded in other contracts and for hedging activities under SFAS 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. SFAS 149
is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003,
and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. Upon
adoption, SFAS 149 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
results of operations or financial condition. 

SFAS 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity, was issued in May 2003.
SFAS 150 established standards for classification and measurement of
certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and
equity. SFAS 150 was effective for financial instruments entered into or
modified after May 31, 2003, and was otherwise effective October 1,
2003. Upon adoption, SFAS 150 did not have a material impact on the
Company’s results of operations or financial condition. 

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued a
revision to SFAS 132, Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits. SFAS 132, as revised, requires additional and
more frequent disclosures about the assets, obligations, cash flows and
net periodic benefit costs of defined benefit pension plans and other
postretirement benefit plans. Guidant adopted SFAS 132, as revised, 
in December 2003, resulting in additional disclosures in all periods 
presented in this report. The adoption of SFAS 132, as revised, did not
have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or finan-
cial position.

In December 2003, the Securities and Exchange Commission released
Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) 104, Revenue Recognition. SAB 104
clarifies existing guidance regarding revenue recognition. The adoption of
SAB 104 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations. 

Note 3  GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In accordance with the Company’s adoption of SFAS 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets, $105.0 million of other intangibles were reclas-
sified to goodwill on January 1, 2002. The net book value of these assets
on that date was $89.1 million. The reclassification was primarily related
to the assembled work force obtained in conjunction with the Intermedics
acquisition in February 1999. There were no material changes to goodwill
as a result of acquisitions, dispositions or translation during 2003. If the
non-amortization provisions of SFAS 142 had been adopted for all peri-
ods presented, reported net income in 2001 would have increased by
$29.8 million and earnings per share would have increased by $0.10.

Goodwill at December 31 consisted of the following:

2003 2002

Intermedics, Inc. $342.9 $345.2
Advanced Cardiovascular Systems, Inc. 102.1 102.1
InControl, Inc. 53.9 53.9
Other 14.0 12.8

$512.9 $514.0

Other intangible assets at December 31 consisted of the following:

ORIGINAL ACCUMULATED CARRYING
COST AMORTIZATION VALUE

2003
Intermedics, Inc. $ 28.0 $13.8 $ 14.2
X Technologies, Inc. 88.7 6.8 81.9
Other licensed technologies 

and distribution agreements 127.8 61.7 66.1

$244.5 $82.3 $162.2

2002
Intermedics, Inc.  $28.0 $11.0 $ 17.0
Other licensed technologies  

and distribution agreements 125.5 49.3 76.2

$153.5 $60.3 $ 93.2
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Excluding goodwill and intangible assets reclassified to goodwill, amorti-
zation expense of intangible assets was $20.9 million, $12.6 million and
$10.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.
The annual estimated amortization expense for intangible assets for the
five-year period ending December 31, 2008, ranges from $25.0 million
to $30.0 million.

Note 4  BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND OTHER PURCHASE

TRANSACTIONS

MediVas LLC In September 2003, Guidant acquired a subsidiary of
MediVas LLC (MediVas), including rights to certain bioabsorbable polymer
technologies. The agreement provided Guidant with an exclusive world-
wide license to these bioabsorbable polymer products, related pre-clinical
and clinical data, and intellectual property for use with drugs in the
“rolimus” family, as well as a non-exclusive license for use with other
drugs. Guidant recorded a $35.2 million IPRD charge in connection with
the purchase, since technological feasibility of the project had not been
attained and the research had no alternative future uses. MediVas may
receive additional milestone payments over the course of clinical develop-
ment and receive royalties on future sales of licensed products utilizing
MediVas’ technology. 

Biosensors International In March 2003, the Company completed its
acquisition of certain assets of Biosensors International’s (Biosensors)
everolimus eluting stent program, including an exclusive worldwide
license to Biosensors’ polymer formulation technology in the field of
everolimus eluting stents and a nonexclusive license to use this technolo-
gy with other drugs in drug eluting stents. Additionally, Guidant acquired
the option of manufacturing and commercializing the stent platform used
in the FUTURE I and FUTURE II clinical trials. Guidant recorded a
$20.5 million IPRD charge in connection with the purchase, since tech-
nological feasibility of the project had not been attained and the research
had no alternative future uses. In June 2003, Guidant recorded a $10.1
million IPRD charge as a result of the achievement of a performance
milestone related to positive six-month clinical data of the everolimus
eluting stent trial, FUTURE I. Biosensors may receive additional mile-
stone payments over the course of clinical development and upon CE
Mark approval and receive royalties on future sales of products utilizing
Biosensors’ technology. 

Novartis Pharma AG and Novartis AG In March 2002, Guidant entered
into an agreement with Novartis Pharma AG and Novartis AG (Novartis)
that provided Guidant a co-exclusive worldwide license to use everolimus

in drug eluting stents. As a result, the Company recorded a charge of
$6.5 million related to the value of the IPRD. In September 2002, the
parties expanded the license to make Guidant’s rights exclusive and to
provide Guidant the right to sublicense. Under the agreement, Novartis
will receive milestone payments and a royalty on sales of Guidant prod-
ucts utilizing the drug. A milestone payment of $29.1 million was made
in December 2002 and was recorded as IPRD. 

The assets gained through the Novartis, MediVas and Biosensors acquisi-
tions are key components of Guidant’s drug eluting stent program. The
Company expects to first enter the European market with a Guidant
everolimus eluting stent in 2005 and the US market in 2006.

Bioabsorbable Vascular Solutions In March 2003, Guidant acquired the
majority interest in Bioabsorbable Vascular Solutions (BVS) for $10.0
million. BVS is developing vascular stent platforms designed to be
absorbed by tissue following the restoration of blood flow in patients with
coronary artery disease. Guidant has the option to purchase the remaining
interest for $6.0 million beginning in January 2004 and is required to
purchase it if certain conditions are met. Guidant recorded a $16.0 mil-
lion IPRD charge in March 2003 in connection with the purchase of the
majority interest and a related milestone payment, since technological
feasibility of the project had not been attained and the research had no
alternative future uses. The project is expected to be completed and the
products to be commercially available on a worldwide basis in four to
seven years.  Guidant may make milestone payments over the course of
clinical development. 

X Technologies, Inc. In June 2003, Guidant acquired X Technologies,
Inc., the manufacturer of the FDA-approved FX miniRAIL™ Dilatation
Catheter, a device for the treatment of coronary artery disease. Guidant
paid $60.0 million in cash and forgave a $4.5 million extension of cred-
it. The purchase price was allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities
based upon fair market values, including $88.7 million to intangible
assets related to developed technology and the related deferred tax liabil-
ity of $32.8 million. Guidant may make additional payments upon future
satisfaction of sales performance criteria. These payments will be allocat-
ed to the fair value of the intangibles, with any amounts paid above fair
value of identifiable intangibles recorded as goodwill, when the amount of
the contingent payments is determinable.

Cardiac Intelligence Corporation In December 2002, the Company
completed its acquisition of Cardiac Intelligence Corporation (CIC) for
$19.3 million. This acquisition will supplement Guidant’s Advanced
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Patient Management applications, with a portfolio of intellectual property
in the field of ambulatory, remote, wireless monitoring of the heart func-
tions of patients, including those implanted with devices such as pace-
makers, defibrillators and resynchronization devices. The Company antici-
pates commercial availability of this technology on a worldwide basis
within 2 to 3 years. The entire purchase price was recorded as IPRD. 

Metamorphic Surgical Devices, LLC In October 2001, Guidant entered
into an agreement with Metamorphic Surgical Devices, LLC to purchase
technology pertaining to the development of embolic protection devices.
As a result, the Company recorded a charge of $15.0 million related to
the value of the IPRD. 

The income approach was used to establish the fair values of IPRD. This
approach establishes fair value by estimating the after-tax cash flows
attributable to the in-process project over its useful life and discounting
these after-tax cash flows to present value. 

Revenue estimates were based on estimates of relevant market sizes,
expected market growth rates, expected trends in technology and expect-
ed product introductions by competitors. The Company considered,
among other things, the projects’ stage of completion, complexity of the
work completed as of the acquisition date, costs already incurred, pro-
jected costs to complete, contribution of core technologies and other
acquired assets, expected introduction date and the estimated useful life
of the technology. The discount rate used to arrive at a present value as
of the date of acquisition was based on the time value of money and
medical technology investment risk. For the IPRD recorded in 2003, risk-
adjusted discount rates ranging from 13 percent to 25 percent were uti-
lized to discount the projected cash flows. The Company believes that the
estimated purchased research and development amounts recorded repre-
sent fair value at the date of the acquisition. The Company continues to
move forward with the acquired research and development projects dis-
cussed above. There have been no significant changes from the estimates
used in the original valuations.

Certain of Guidant’s acquisitions involve contingent consideration.
Payment of the additional consideration is generally contingent upon

reaching performance-related milestones, including specified revenue lev-
els, product development targets or regulatory approvals or filings. At
December 31, 2003, Guidant’s accrual for milestone obligations totaled
$10.8 million and will be paid during the next three years. In addition,
future undiscounted contingent consideration for performance-related
milestones on acquisitions of up to $498.2 million could be paid through
2010, depending on when and if milestones are attained. Potential mile-
stone payments under existing agreements during the next 12 months
range from $2.5 million to $202.8 million. The Company continues to
evaluate business development opportunities, which may generate addi-
tional payments.

The operating results of all acquisitions are included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements from the date of each acquisition. 

Note 5  STOCK PLANS

The Company may periodically grant nonqualified stock options and
restricted stock grants to outside members of its Board of Directors and
consultants and may grant incentive stock options, nonqualified stock
options, performance shares and restricted stock grants to employees,
including executive officers of the Company. Grants to employees are
consistent with Guidant’s commitment to recognize and reward employees
and enable them to participate as shareholders. 

There were no broad-based employee stock option grants in 2003 and
2002. The Company made a special grant of stock options on approxi-
mately 11.0 million shares in July 2001 covering all eligible Guidant
employees in lieu of broad-based employee stock option grants in 2002.
This grant was in addition to the January 2001 grant of options to man-
agement employees on approximately 9.0 million shares.  

Stock options are granted at 100% of the fair value of the underlying
stock at the date of grant and have 10-year terms. The stock options
granted to outside directors typically vest and become fully exercisable at
the next annual meeting. The majority of other stock options granted by
the Company vest and become fully exercisable three to five years from
the date of grant or vest in increments over three to five years.



Stock option activity is summarized below:
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The per-share weighted average fair value of stock options granted in
2003, 2002 and 2001 was $12.00, $14.47 and $16.48. The fair value
was estimated as of the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pric-
ing model with the following weighted average assumptions: 

In February 2003, Guidant’s Board of Directors authorized the issuance
of approximately 2.3 million restricted shares of common stock (US) and
restricted stock units (outside the US) to over 2,000 employees.
Restricted stock awards are expensed ratably over the vesting period.
Restricted stock awards granted to certain executive officers were sched-
uled to vest over six years. Awards granted to other employees were
scheduled to vest over three years. Grants may vest earlier upon a quali-

fying disability, death, retirement or change in control. This grant
includes a performance element that allowed vesting to accelerate when
certain Guidant share price performance measures were met. Specifically,
1/3 of the general grants vested upon achievement of 25%, 50% and
75% appreciation of the 60-day moving average stock price from the
date of grant ($34.37 on February 18, 2003). Portions of the executive
officer grants accelerated from six years to three years under this same
performance measure. Guidant recorded $78.7 million of unearned com-
pensation in conjunction with this grant, representing the fair value of
restricted stock awards on the date of grant. Approximately two-thirds of
the share price appreciation targets were achieved and expensed in
2003. The first performance measure was met in July 2003 and the sec-
ond measure was met in December 2003. The final share price apprecia-
tion target was achieved in January 2004. Unearned compensation will
be recognized as compensation expense ratably over the remaining vest-
ing periods. The related compensation expense totaled $53.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2003. 

2003 2002 2001
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED

AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
OPTIONS EXERCISE PRICE OPTIONS EXERCISE PRICE OPTIONS EXERCISE PRICE

Outstanding at January 1 49,836,773 $38.38 52,113,348 $38.41 35,078,541 $37.64
Granted 885,878 38.53 1,152,811 36.10 20,698,411 38.47
Exercised (4,531,773) 27.99 (963,959) 25.31 (1,884,060) 14.76
Cancelled (1,350,344) 43.55 (2,465,427) 43.26 (1,779,544) 49.31
Outstanding at December 31 44,840,534 $39.30 49,836,773 $38.38 52,113,348 $38.41

Exercisable at December 31 29,670,014 $38.84 26,458,259 $35.31 18,848,329 $30.38

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
WEIGHTED

AVERAGE
REMAINING WEIGHTED WEIGHTED

RANGE OF CONTRACTUAL AVERAGE AVERAGE
EXERCISE PRICES OUTSTANDING LIFE (YEARS) EXERCISE PRICE EXERCISABLE EXERCISE PRICE

$ 3.63 - $10.00 1,408,729 1.7 $ 7.22 1,408,729 $ 7.22
$10.01 - $17.00 2,231,725 2.8 11.02 2,231,725 11.02
$17.01 - $30.00 767,332 4.5 23.40 638,270 22.13
$30.01 - $39.00 18,315,804 6.1 32.13 10,955,387 32.68
$39.01 - $71.00 22,116,944 6.1 50.70 14,435,903 51.64

44,840,534 5.8 $39.30 29,670,014 $38.84

2003 2002 2001

Risk-free interest rate 3.0% 4.0% 5.1%
Dividend yield .60% — —
Volatility factor 37.0% 38.9% 38.5%
Option life 3 – 7 years 3 – 7 years 3 – 7 years
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The Company introduced its Employee Stock Purchase Plan in 2001. This
plan allows employees to contribute up to 10% of their wages toward the
purchase of the Company’s common stock at the end of each four-month
purchase period. Employees purchase shares of Guidant common stock for
85% of the average of the reported high and low sales prices on the first
or last day of the purchase period, whichever price is lower. 

There were approximately 10.1 million additional shares available for
grant under the Company’s stock plans on December 31, 2003.

The Company has a shareholder rights plan that entitles all shareholders
to a preferred stock purchase right. The rights will expire on October 17,
2004, unless redeemed earlier by the Company. The purchase rights enti-
tle shareholders to purchase from the Company 1/400 of a share of
Series A Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $10.88. The Company
may redeem the rights for $0.0025 per right up to and including the
10th business day after the date of a public announcement that a person
or group of affiliated or associated persons (Acquiring Person) has

acquired ownership of common stock having 10% or more of the
Company’s general voting power (Stock Acquisition Date). The plan pro-
vides that, if the Company is acquired in a business combination at any
time after a Stock Acquisition Date, generally each holder of a right will
be entitled to purchase at the exercise price a number of the acquiring
company’s shares having a market value of twice the exercise price. The
plan also provides that in the event of certain other business combina-
tions, certain self-dealing transactions, or the acquisition by an Acquiring
Person of stock having 15% or more of the Company’s general voting
power, generally each holder of a right will be entitled to purchase at the
exercise price a number of shares of the Company’s common stock having
a market value of twice the exercise price. Any rights beneficially owned
by an Acquiring Person shall not be entitled to the benefit of the adjust-
ments with respect to the number of shares described above. 

Note 6  EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of earnings per share:

2003 2002 2001

Income from continuing operations $ 425.5 $ 668.1 $ 523.4
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (95.2) (56.3) (39.4)

Net income $330.3 $ 611.8 $ 484.0

Earnings per share—basic
Income from continuing operations $  1.39 $ 2.21 $  1.74
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (0.31) (0.18) (0.13)

Net income $  1.08 $ 2.03 $  1.61

Earnings per share — diluted
Income from continuing operations $  1.36 $ 2.18 $  1.71
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (0.30) (0.18) (0.13)

Net income $  1.06 $2.00 $  1.58

Weighted average common shares outstanding 305.10 301.74 300.86
Effect of dilutive stock options and unvested restricted 

stock awards 7.42 4.25 5.36
Weighted average common shares outstanding

and assumed conversions 312.52 305.99 306.22



Total options outstanding at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were
44.8 million, 49.8 million and 52.1 million. Earnings per share-diluted
includes 26.5 million, 19.2 million and 28.1 million stock options for
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. Stock options
whose exercise price per share was greater than their average market
value per share were excluded from the calculation of earnings per share-
diluted because including them would have had an anti-dilutive impact. 

Note 7  BORROWINGS

The Company’s outstanding borrowings on December 31 consisted of:

On February 11, 1999, the Company issued seven-year, 6.15% long-term
notes with a $350.0 million principal amount due in 2006. At December
31, 2003, Guidant had interest rate swap agreements on these notes
with a notional amount of $350.0 million, converting the fixed interest
rate to a variable interest rate indexed to LIBOR. Interest rate fluctua-
tions impact the fair value of the long-term notes, which are offset by
corresponding changes in the fair value of the interest rate swap agree-
ments. At December 31, 2003, the interest rate swap agreements
increased long-term notes by $6.9 million.

At December 31, 2003, the Company had a $400.0 million credit facili-
ty that permits borrowings through August 2004 and a $400.0 million
credit facility that permits borrowings through August 2007. There are
currently no outstanding borrowings under these arrangements, which
carry a variable market rate of interest. Commercial paper classified as
long-term debt represents the amount Guidant expects to replace with
additional issuances of commercial paper upon maturity in the current
year. Restrictive covenants in the borrowing agreements include consoli-
dations, mergers, certain sales of assets, maintenance of certain financial
performance measures and limitations on subsidiary borrowings.
Commitment fees were not material in 2003 or 2002.  

At December 31, 2003, long-term debt was comprised of the long-term
notes, including the market value of the interest rate swap agreements,
and commercial paper. Commercial paper borrowings increased in 2003
due primarily to acquisitions, asset purchases and common stock repur-
chased in accordance with the stock buy-back program. At December 31,
2002, long-term debt was comprised of the long-term notes, including
the market value of the interest rate swap agreements. The weighted
average interest rate on borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2003,
including the effect of the interest rate swap agreements, was 1.89%
compared to 3.94% at December 31, 2002. The primary reason for the
decrease in the weighted average interest rate was due to the commercial
paper balances outstanding as of December 31, 2003, which have lower
interest rates than the long-term notes. Interest expense, which approxi-
mates cash payments of interest on borrowings, was $17.2 million,
$23.9 million and $47.0 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Note 8  ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) are 
as follows:

Note 9  LEASES

Guidant leases various manufacturing and office facilities and certain
equipment under operating leases. Total future minimum lease commit-
ments are as follows:
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2003 2002

Long-term notes $355.7 $361.7
Commercial paper 584.9 —
Bank borrowings 7.7 6.8

Total borrowings 948.3 368.5
Less short-term debt 250.0 6.8

Long-term debt $698.3 $361.7

2003 2002 2001

Currency translation adjustments $177.5 $44.9 ($73.2)
Unrealized gain (loss) on foreign 

exchange contracts (27.0) (14.4) 5.2
Minimum pension liability (26.5) (21.6) (5.8)

$124.0 $ 8.9 ($73.8)

2004 $ 33.0
2005 29.5
2006 23.1
2007 12.6
2008 11.4

Thereafter 3.4

$113.0



Rent expense for all leases, including contingent rentals that were not
material, amounted to approximately $39.8 million, $32.9 million and
$34.7 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001. 

Note 10  INCOME TAXES

Following is a summary of income before income taxes of US and inter-
national operations:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the future tax consequences of
events that have already been recognized in the consolidated financial
statements or income tax returns. At December 31, deferred tax assets
and liabilities consisted of the following:

Following is a reconciliation of the effective income tax rate:
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2003 2002 2001

US ($165.0) $415.8 $308.8
International 650.0 502.9 418.9

$485.0 $918.7 $727.7

Following is the composition of income tax expense:

2003 2002 2001

Current:
Federal ($ 10.0) $201.1 $127.2
State 12.2 19.7 19.4
Foreign 110.1 76.4 66.0

Total current expense 112.3 297.2 212.6
Deferred:

Federal (25.9) (25.2) (0.8)
State (22.1) (19.4) (7.5)
Foreign (4.8) (2.0) —

Total deferred tax benefit (52.8) (46.6) (8.3)

Income tax expense $ 59.5 $250.6 $204.3

2003 2002 2001

US federal statutory income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increase (decrease) in tax rate 
resulting from:

State income taxes, net of federal 
tax benefit 0.9 1.4 1.4

Effect of international operations (19.2) (9.8) (8.7)
Research credit (2.9) (1.1) (1.5)
Benefit from export incentives (1.7) (1.0) (1.1)
Nondeductible IPRD 3.9 0.8 —
Reversal of income tax accruals 

due to tax audit resolution (6.2) — —
Other, net 2.5 2.0 3.0

Effective income tax rate 12.3% 27.3% 28.1%

2003 2002

Deferred tax assets:
Inventory and product-related 

reserves $194.0 $125.5
Net operating loss, capital loss, 

and credit carryforwards 45.4 27.0
Accrued liabilities 124.0 93.7
Acquisition of intangible assets 61.7 65.7

425.1 311.9

Valuation allowances (12.6) (3.9)

Total deferred tax assets 412.5 308.0

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment (97.7) (43.6)
Other (0.7) (0.5)

Total deferred tax liabilities (98.4) (44.1)

Deferred tax assets, net $314.1 $263.9



US federal and state deferred income taxes have not been recorded that
would result from future remittances of undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries – $2,474.0 million at December 31, 2003 – because such
earnings are intended to be indefinitely reinvested in these foreign opera-
tions. Additional US tax liabilities would be incurred should the Company
remit a portion of these earnings.

At December 31, 2003, approximately $76.0 million of federal, state and
foreign tax losses and $24.3 million of federal and state credits were
available for carryforward. The federal and state carryforwards are subject
to valuation allowances and certain restrictions. The losses and credits
generally expire within a period of 4 to 15 years. At December 31, 2003,
$7.9 million of capital losses were available for carryforward. The carryfor-
ward is subject to a valuation allowance and expires December 31, 2005.
In view of the consistent profitability of its past operations, the Company
believes that the deferred tax assets will be substantially recovered and
that no significant additional valuation allowances are necessary.

Income taxes paid were $121.7 million, $172.8 million and $127.6 mil-
lion in 2003, 2002 and 2001. 

Note 11  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Employee Savings and Stock Ownership Plan Guidant has a defined
contribution savings plan that covers its eligible US employees. The plan
includes both an employee savings component (savings plan) and an
employee stock ownership component (Employee Stock Ownership Plan
or “ESOP”). The purpose of the plan is to provide additional financial
security to employees during retirement.

Participants in the plan may elect to contribute, on a before-tax basis, a
certain percent of their annual salaries. Participants’ contributions may
not be invested in Guidant common stock. The Company matches a por-
tion of these employee contributions with Guidant common stock. In

addition, the Company contributes Guidant common stock to the ESOP in
a fixed percentage of employees’ annual base pay, regardless of the
employee contribution. 

The Company makes its matching and fixed contributions to the plan’s
ESOP component. This internally leveraged ESOP acquired approximately
9.0 million shares of newly issued Guidant common stock at a cost of
approximately $60.0 million ($6.68 per share) in September 1995.
Common shares held by the ESOP are allocated among participants’
accounts on a periodic basis until these shares are exhausted (approxi-
mately 2006, assuming the year-end price per share of Guidant common
stock of $60.20 remains constant). At December 31, 2003, the ESOP
held approximately 6.4 million shares allocated to employee accounts
and 2.6 million unallocated shares. The cost of shares held by the ESOP
and not yet allocated to employees is reported as a reduction of share-
holders’ equity. Allocated shares of the ESOP are charged to expense
based on the fair value of the shares transferred and are treated as out-
standing in the computation of earnings per share. Compensation
expense under these plans was $44.1 million, $33.8 million and $30.3
million for 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Retirement Plans The Company sponsors the Guidant Retirement Plan,
a frozen noncontributory defined benefit plan. The Company’s funding
policy for the Guidant Retirement Plan is consistent with US employee
benefit and tax-funding regulations. The Company does not expect to
make a contribution to the Guidant Retirement Plan in 2004. Guidant
Retirement Plan assets, which are maintained in a trust, consist primarily
of equity and fixed income instruments. The Company also sponsors the
Guidant Excess Benefit Plan-Retirement, a nonqualified, unfunded plan
for certain of its officers and key employees. In addition, US and Puerto
Rico employees of the Company are eligible to receive specified
Company-paid healthcare retirement benefits under a plan established in
2000. The Company uses a December 31 measurement date for its
plans. Following is a summary of these plans:
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GUIDANT GUIDANT HEALTHCARE 
RETIREMENT EXCESS BENEFIT RETIREMENT

PLAN PLAN-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

Accumulated Benefit Obligation December 31 $73.6 $61.7 $ 27.7 $ 24.2 $ 18.1 $15.0

Change in Projected Benefit Obligation 

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $64.8 $56.5 $ 26.0 $ 26.1 $ 15.0 $12.6

Service cost — — — — 1.8 1.6

Interest cost 4.4 4.1 1.8 1.7 1.0 0.9

Benefits paid (1.4) (1.2) (0.9) (0.8) (0.3) (0.2)

Actuarial loss 6.9 5.4 2.2 1.5 0.6 0.1

Settlement — — — (2.5) — —

Projected benefit obligation at end of year $74.7 $64.8 $ 29.1 $ 26.0 $ 18.1 $15.0

Change in Plan Assets

Plan assets at fair value at beginning of year $55.2 $60.8 — — — —

Actual gain (loss) on plan assets 9.9 (4.4) — — — —

Company contributions — — $  0.9 $   4.3 $  0.3 $ 0.2

Benefits paid (1.4) (1.2) (0.9) (0.8) (0.3) (0.2)

Settlement — — — (3.5) — —

Plan assets at fair value at end of year $63.7 $55.2 — — — —

Funded status of the plan

Projected benefits in excess of plan assets ($11.0) ($ 9.6) ($ 29.1) ($ 26.0) ($ 18.1) ($15.0)

Unrecognized net loss 34.1 30.9 10.3 8.4 0.6 —

Unrecognized prior service cost — — 6.6 7.8 6.5 7.1

Prepaid/(accrued) pension cost $23.1 $21.3 ($ 12.2) ($ 9.8) ($ 11.0) ($ 7.9)

Amounts Recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet

Accrued benefit liability ($ 9.9) ($ 6.5) ($ 27.7) ($ 24.2) ($ 11.0) ($ 7.9)

Intangible asset — — 6.6 7.8 — —

Deferred tax asset 12.1 10.3 3.3 2.5 — —

Accumulated other comprehensive income 20.9 17.5 5.6 4.1 — —

Net amount recognized $ 23.1 $21.3 ($ 12.2) ($ 9.8) ($ 11.0) ($ 7.9)

Periodic Benefit Cost

Service cost — — — — $   1.8 $ 1.6

Interest cost $ 4.4 $ 4.1 $  1.8 $  1.7 1.0 0.9

Expected return on plan assets (6.5) (7.6) — — — —

Amortization of unrecognized net loss 0.3 — 0.3 1.1 — —

Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost — — 1.2 1.2 0.6 0.6

Settlement loss — — — 0.9 — —

Net periodic benefit cost ($ 1.8) ($ 3.5) $  3.3 $  4.9 $  3.4 $ 3.1



The principal long-term determinant of a portfolio’s investment return is
its asset allocation. The Guidant Retirement Plan allocation is heavily
weighted towards growth assets (90%) versus fixed income (10%). In
addition, active management strategies have added value relative to pas-
sive benchmark returns. The expected long-term rate of return assump-
tion is based on the mix of assets in the plan, the long-term earnings
expected to be associated with each asset class, and the additional return
expected through active management. This assumption is periodically
benchmarked against peer plans.

The amortization of prior service cost is determined using a straight-line
amortization of the cost over the average remaining service period of
employees expected to receive benefits under the plan. The assumed
healthcare cost trend rate can have a significant effect on the amounts
reported for healthcare plans. A one-percentage point change in assumed
healthcare cost trend rates does not significantly impact the service cost,
interest cost, or projected benefit obligation disclosed for the Healthcare
Retirement Benefit Plan.

The Guidant Retirement Plan weighted average asset allocations at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, by asset category, are as follows:

The allocation strategy for the Guidant Retirement Plan comprises
approximately 85% to 95% growth investments and 5% to 15% fixed-
income investments. Within the growth investment classification, the plan
asset strategy encompasses equity and equity-like instruments that are
expected to represent approximately 75% of our plan asset portfolio of
both public and private market investments. The largest component of
these equity and equity-like instruments is public equity securities that
are well diversified and invested in US and international companies. The
remaining 15% of the growth investment classification is represented by
other alternative growth investments. The alternative assets, comprised of
real estate, private market and hedge fund instruments provide an impor-
tant source of diversified, value-added return.

Certain employees outside the US participate in retirement plans main-
tained by the Company. Expenses for the employees participating in these
plans have not been included in the preceding table. Expenses attributa-
ble to the employees at these locations are included in the results of
operations and totaled $11.4 million, $6.5 million and $5.4 million in
2003, 2002 and 2001.

Note 12  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company manages its business on the basis of one reportable seg-
ment: the development, manufacture and marketing of therapeutic med-
ical technologies for the treatment of cardiovascular and vascular dis-
eases. Guidant’s chief operating decision-makers use consolidated results
to make operating and strategic decisions. See Note 1 for a brief descrip-
tion of the Company’s business. 
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GUIDANT GUIDANT HEALTHCARE 
RETIREMENT EXCESS BENEFIT RETIREMENT

PLAN PLAN-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

Assumptions – Benefit Obligations
Discount rate 6.25% 6.90% 6.25% 6.90% 6.25% 6.90%
Expected return on plan assets 8.75% 8.75% — — — —
Rate of compensation increase 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% — —
Healthcare cost trend rate — — — — 7.00% 7.00%

Assumptions – Net Periodic Benefit Cost
Discount rate 6.90% 7.25% 6.90% 7.25% 6.90% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets 8.75% 10.50% — — — —
Rate of compensation increase 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% 5.90% — —
Healthcare cost trend rate — — — — 7.00% 7.00% 

The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31 and net periodic benefit costs for the years then ended are as follows:

ASSET CATEGORY

2003 2002

Equity and equity-like securities 77% 85%
Debt securities 9% 10%
Real Estate 2% 3%
Other 12% 2%

Total 100% 100%
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No single customer represented more than 10% of the Company’s 
consolidated sales.

Note 13  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the normal course of business, operations of the Company are exposed
to fluctuations in currency values and short-term interest rates. The
Company’s objective is to reduce earnings volatility associated with these
fluctuations to allow management to focus on core business issues.
Accordingly, the Company addresses these risks through a controlled pro-
gram of risk management that includes the use of derivative financial
instruments. The Company’s derivative activities are initiated within the
guidelines of documented corporate risk management policies. The
Company does not enter into any derivative transactions for speculative or
trading purposes.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management A portion of the Company’s cash
flows is derived from transactions denominated in foreign currencies
(principally the currencies of Europe and Asia). The US dollar value of
transactions denominated in foreign currencies fluctuates as the US dol-
lar strengthens or weakens relative to these foreign currencies. In order to
reduce the uncertainty of foreign exchange rate movements on transac-
tions denominated in foreign currencies, the Company enters into deriva-
tive financial instruments in the form of foreign exchange forward con-
tracts with major financial institutions. These forward contracts, which
typically mature within one year, are designed to hedge anticipated for-
eign currency transactions, primarily intercompany inventory purchases.
These contracts also hedge intercompany loans, payables and receiv-
ables. The Company’s foreign exchange contracts do not subject it to
material risk due to exchange rate movements, because gains and losses
on these contracts offset losses and gains on the assets, liabilities and
transactions being hedged. 

No components of the contracts are excluded in the measurement of
hedge effectiveness. The critical terms of the foreign exchange contracts
are the same as the underlying forecasted transactions; therefore,
changes in the fair value of the foreign exchange contracts should be
highly effective in offsetting changes in the expected cash flows from the
forecasted transactions. No gains or losses related to ineffectiveness of
cash flow hedges were recognized in earnings during 2003, 2002 and
2001. Unrealized gains/(losses) on foreign exchange contracts of ($41.3)
million, ($20.9) million and $6.2 million, net of taxes of $14.3 million,
$6.5 million and $1.0 million, were included as a component of accumu-
lated other comprehensive income in 2003, 2002 and 2001. The
Company anticipates that all gains and losses in accumulated other com-
prehensive income related to foreign exchange contracts will be reclassi-
fied into earnings by January 2005. 

Interest Rate Risk Management The Company uses interest rate swap
agreements to manage its exposure to interest rate movements and to
reduce borrowing costs. The Company’s debt is composed of fixed-rate,
long-term notes and variable-rate, short-term bank borrowings. Guidant
manages this risk by using interest rate swap agreements to convert
fixed-rate debt to variable-rate debt. The Company had interest rate swap
agreements outstanding with a notional amount of $350.0 and $175.0
million at December 31, 2003 and 2002. Accordingly, interest rate fluc-
tuations impact the fair value of long-term notes outstanding, which are
offset by corresponding changes in the fair value of the interest rate swap
agreements. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements was
recorded within “Sundry” and “Other Noncurrent Liabilities” on the con-

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

2003 2002 2001

Net Sales (1):
US $2,521.0 $2,230.2 $1,844.0
International 1,177.8 930.4 797.6

$3,698.8 $3,160.6 $2,641.6

(1) Revenues are attributed to countries based on location of the customer.

2003 2002

Long-lived Assets:
US $679.7 $559.6
International 88.3 83.5

$768.0 $643.1

CLASSES OF SIMILAR PRODUCTS

2003 2002 2001

Net Sales:
Implantable defibrillator systems $1,488.7 $1,006.8 $ 716.6
Pacemaker systems 683.5 636.6 582.7
Coronary stent systems 843.7 920.9 811.2
Angioplasty systems 477.6 430.5 403.5
Cardiac surgery, biliary, peripheral 

and carotid systems 205.3 165.8 127.6

$3,698.8 $3,160.6 $2,641.6



solidated balance sheets, and was offset by identical balances in long-
term notes.

Concentrations of Credit Risk Financial instruments that potentially
subject the Company to credit risk consist principally of interest-bearing
investments, foreign exchange contracts, trade receivables and interest
rate swap agreements. The Company maintains cash and cash equiva-
lents, investments, and certain other financial instruments with various
major financial institutions or in high-credit quality commercial paper.
The Company performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing
of these financial institutions and companies and limits the amount of
credit exposure with any one institution. Cash and cash equivalents
include interest-bearing investments with maturities of three months or
less. These investments consist primarily of A-1 and P-1 or better rated
financial instruments and counterparties. Hospitals and other healthcare
providers account for a substantial portion of the trade receivables.
Collateral for these receivables is generally not required. The risk associ-
ated with this concentration is limited due to the large number of
accounts and their geographic dispersion. The Company monitors the
creditworthiness of customers to which it grants credit terms in the nor-
mal course of business. 

The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonper-
formance by counterparties to financial instruments, but management
believes this credit risk is limited by periodically reviewing the creditwor-
thiness of the counterparties to the transactions.

Financial Instruments The fair value of cash and cash equivalents,
receivables, short-term debt and commercial paper approximate their carry-
ing value due to their short-term maturities. The cost and estimated fair val-
ues of the Company’s other significant financial instruments are as follows:

The Company determines fair values primarily based on quoted market
values. A reasonable estimate of fair value was made using available mar-
ket and financial information for long-term investments having no quoted
market prices and accounted for on the cost basis. The fair value of long-
term debt was based on the current market rates for debt of similar
maturity. The estimated fair values of foreign exchange contracts and
interest rate swap agreements were calculated using pricing models used
widely in financial markets and included all foreign exchange contracts
regardless of hedge designation. The estimates presented on long-term
financial instruments are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that
would be realized in a current market exchange.

Note 14  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In June 2003, Guidant’s Board of Directors approved a plan to dispose of
the ANCURE ENDOGRAFT System product line to treat abdominal aortic
aneurysms (AAA) due to continuing financial losses, limited prospects for
the Company’s AAA product line and the impact of the Department of
Justice investigation. In December 2003, Guidant’s Board of Directors
ratified a plan to discontinue Guidant’s operations in Brazil due to unfa-
vorable business conditions and poor operating performance. The disposal
plans include the termination of normal activity, abandonment of property
and equipment, product returns, collection of receivables and settlement
of liabilities. Guidant has written down long-lived assets to fair value and
recorded inventory and accounts receivable at net realizable value. 

In accordance with SFAS 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets, both disposals represent discontinued operations.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and
notes reflect the results of operations and financial position of the AAA
product line and the Brazil operations as discontinued operations for all
periods presented. Net loss from discontinued operations includes pro-
ceeds from the sale of internally developed intangible assets, charges
related to the impairment of certain long-lived assets, inventory write-
downs, customer returns, litigation settlements and accruals for employee
severance and lease commitments expensed in 2003. In December
2003, Guidant granted Cook Incorporated (Cook) a covenant not to sue
related to Cook’s manufacture and distribution of their endovascular graft
products in exchange for $20.0 million. The proceeds were recorded in
discontinued operations. 

At December 31, 2003, and December 31, 2002, there were $5.8 mil-
lion and $31.7 million in assets and $20.2 million and $43.6 million in
liabilities related to the AAA product line and Brazil operations. Assets
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2003 2002
FAIR FAIR

COST VALUE COST VALUE

Assets:
Available-for-sale securities $   0.5 $   0.2 $   0.5 $   0.1
Held-to-maturity securities 0.1 0.1 10.4 10.3
Other investments 54.8 54.8 46.7 46.7

Liabilities:
Long-term notes $355.7 $374.2 $361.7 $390.1

Foreign exchange contracts — ($ 46.8) — ($  31.3)

Interest rate swap agreements — $   6.9 — $ 13.5



66

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

are primarily comprised of accounts receivable, inventory and property,
plant and equipment. Liabilities primarily include accruals for severance,
product returns and lease commitments expensed in 2003. Liabilities
also include the accrual for the ANCURE-related investigation of $30.0
million at December 31, 2002, which was increased to $92.0 million in
March 2003 and settled in June 2003 for $92.4 million.  

The following summarizes financial information for the AAA product line
and Brazil operations for the years ended December 31:

Note 15  OTHER TRANSACTIONS

Guidant Foundation In 2002 the Company contributed $40.0 million
to the Guidant Foundation. Guidant Foundation is a non-profit organiza-
tion that has common management with Guidant. Guidant Foundation
provides financial support and grants to non-profit organizations for chari-
table and educational programs that improve the quality of life for people
who are at risk for or suffer from cardiovascular disease. Guidant
Foundation also provides financial support to non-profit organizations in
the communities where Guidant operates in the US. Contributions are
made possible by the profits of Guidant; however, Guidant is not required
to make contributions to the Foundation, except for amounts pledged.
Amounts payable to Guidant Foundation at December 31, 2003 and
2002 were $31.0 million and $45.0 million, representing the balances
remaining from pledges made of $40.0 million in 2002 and $10.0 mil-
lion in 2001.

Cook Charge In July 2002, Guidant entered into an agreement to acquire
Cook Group Incorporated (Cook) in a stock-for-stock transaction, subject to
satisfaction of certain clinical and legal conditions relating to the
ACHIEVE Drug Eluting Coronary Stent System. The clinical conditions
included positive results from the US clinical study, DELIVER, which com-
pared the paclitaxel-coated ACHIEVE Drug Eluting Coronary Stent System
manufactured by Cook Incorporated to Guidant’s MULTI-LINK PENTA
Coronary Stent System. On January 2, 2003, the Company announced
that a preliminary analysis of the clinical results indicated that the primary
target vessel failure (TVF) endpoint of the study would not be met,
although there was a trend toward improvement in TVF in the treatment

arm of the study. Based on this information, the conditions outlined in the
merger agreement with Cook were not expected to be satisfied and the
merger agreement was subsequently terminated in January 2003. A $60.6
million charge was recorded in 2002 relating to a $50.0 million termina-
tion fee plus accrued interest, $6.6 million non-saleable, non-returnable
Cook inventory and $3.8 million of other merger-related expenses.

Restructuring Guidant’s Board of Directors approved a plan to restruc-
ture the biliary and peripheral product line operations in May 2002. A
charge of $14.0 million was recorded, which includes the termination of
Guidant’s involvement in certain peripheral product clinical trials, work
force reductions, facility reductions and certain other related costs. At
December 31, 2003, a liability of approximately $5.0 million remains
related to product clinical trials required to be paid over the next 5 years.

Litigation Settlements Litigation settlements for 2003 are described in
Note 16. In 2002 the Company recorded a $137.1 million net litigation
benefit primarily from a $158.2 million award plus interest and costs
against Medtronic, Inc. In 2001, Guidant recorded a net litigation benefit
of $10.0 million from awards against Boston Scientific Corporation of
$19.5 million and Medtronic, Inc. of $6.6 million offset by a settlement
with Cordis Corporation of $16.1 million.

Note 16  CONTINGENCIES 

The Company is involved in patent, product liability, shareholder and other
legal proceedings that arise in the course of the Company’s business. The
Company records a liability when a loss is considered probable and the
amount can be reasonably estimated. If the reasonable estimate of a prob-
able loss is a range, and no amount within the range is a better estimate,
the lower end of the range is accrued. If a loss is not probable or a proba-
ble loss cannot be reasonably estimated, no liability is recorded. 

Patent and other proprietary rights are essential to the Company’s busi-
ness. Significant litigation concerning patents and products is pervasive
in the Company’s industry. Patent claims include challenges to the cover-
age and validity of the Company’s patents on products or processes as
well as allegations that the Company’s products infringe patents held by
competitors or other third parties. Although the Company believes that it
has valid defenses to these challenges with respect to material patents,
there can be no assurance as to the outcome of these matters, and a loss
in any of these cases could result in a loss of patent protection or the
ability to market products, which could lead to a significant loss of sales,
or otherwise materially affect future results of operations. 

2003 2002 2001

Net sales $ 18.2 $79.0 $66.0
Loss from discontinued operations 

before income taxes 127.8 79.5 60.5
Net loss from discontinued operations 95.2 56.3 39.4



Losses in the matters below are not considered probable or cannot be
reasonably estimated. Accordingly, the Company has not recorded
reserves for these matters. While the liability of the Company in connec-
tion with the claims cannot be estimated with any certainty, the outcome
of these legal proceedings, except as specifically identified below, is not
expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, although the resolution in any reporting period of one
or more of these matters could have a significant impact on the
Company’s results of operations for that period. While the Company
believes that it has valid defenses in these matters, litigation is inherently
uncertain, excessive verdicts do occur, and the Company may in the future
incur material judgments or enter into material settlements of claims.

On August 19, 2003, an arbitration panel entered a final ruling that the
Company’s MULTI-LINK DUET Coronary Stent System infringes certain
claims under patents owned by Cordis Corporation (Cordis), a subsidiary
of Johnson & Johnson. As a result, the Company made a payment of
$425.0 million to Cordis in the fourth quarter of 2003. The Company
accrued the amount of the award in the second quarter of 2003. 

On February 24, 2004, the Company announced that it had agreed with
Cordis to settle all outstanding litigation between the companies without
material cash payment. The settlement was announced as part of a
broader agreement to co-promote Cordis’ CYPHER Sirolimus-eluting
Coronary Stent and to cross license certain additional patents. The settle-
ment resolves a pending arbitration initiated in the first quarter of 2002
asserting the Company’s Lau patents, as well as other outstanding claims
of Cordis relating to stent design.

On February 20, 2004, the Company announced that it had agreed with
Boston Scientific Corporation (Boston Scientific) to settle all outstanding
litigation between the companies without material cash payment. The set-
tlement resolves a number of cases filed in October and December 2002
in the Northern District of California relating to coronary stents, coronary
stent delivery systems and dilatation catheters. In addition to settling the
cases, the companies agreed to cross license patents in a number of
specified technology areas.

On February 18, 1998, Arterial Vascular Engineering, Inc. (now known as
Medtronic Vascular) filed suit against the Company’s subsidiary,
Advanced Cardiovascular Systems, Inc. (ACS), in the District Court for
Delaware alleging that the sale of MULTI-LINK family of coronary stent
systems infringes the Boneau patents owned by Medtronic Vascular. The
suit is consolidated with a suit by ACS alleging infringement by

Medtronic Vascular of the Company’s Lau stent patents. The Medtronic
Vascular complaint also alleges misappropriation of trade secrets and
breach of a confidentiality agreement by ACS. In the lawsuit, Medtronic
Vascular is seeking injunctive relief, co-ownership of the Lau patents,
monetary damages and a ruling that the ACS stent patents asserted
against Medtronic Vascular are invalid. Pretrial matters are scheduled
through 2004, with trial set in the first quarter of 2005. This suit is one
of a number of suits brought by Medtronic Vascular under the Boneau
patents against all substantial participants in the stent market. The
claims are wide-ranging and cover the Company’s products broadly.
Accordingly, while potential liability cannot be estimated with any cer-
tainty, an adverse outcome could have a material impact on results of
operations or consolidated financial position.

On June 15, 2000, Medtronic, Inc. (Medtronic) filed a declaratory judg-
ment action against the Company and its Cardiac Pacemakers, Inc. (CPI)
subsidiary in the District Court for Minnesota requesting that the court
rule that Medtronic does not infringe certain of CPI’s patents for atrial
fibrillation technology or that the patents are not valid. Subsequently, the
Company asserted additional patents related to atrial fibrillation technolo-
gy against Medtronic in the same court. Currently, eight patents are being
asserted against Medtronic in this consolidated litigation. Pretrial matters
are scheduled into the second half of 2004.

On March 6, 2002, Pacesetter, Inc. (Pacesetter), a subsidiary of St. Jude
Medical, Inc. (St. Jude), filed suit against the Company’s subsidiaries,
CPI and Guidant Sales Corporation (GSC), in the Central District of
California alleging that CPI and GSC have infringed a number of
Pacesetter patents covering various features of pacemakers and
implantable defibrillators. On the Company’s motion, the case was trans-
ferred to the District Court for Minnesota. Pacesetter is seeking injunctive
relief, monetary damages and attorney fees. Currently four patents are at
issue. Pacesetter has sought reexamination of two of the patents. On the
Company’s motion, the litigation has been stayed pending the completion
of the reexaminations.

On April 14, 2003, Medinol Ltd. filed suit against the Company and its
ACS subsidiary in the Southern District of New York alleging that the sale
of the Company’s MULTI-LINK ZETA and MULTI-LINK PENTA Coronary
Stent Systems infringe five Medinol patents related to stent design. The
complaint seeks injunctive relief and monetary damages. Pretrial matters
are scheduled through most of 2004.
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On June 12, 2003, the Company announced that its subsidiary,
EndoVascular Technologies, Inc. (EVT), had entered into a plea agree-
ment with the US Department of Justice relating to a previously disclosed
investigation regarding the ANCURE ENDOGRAFT System for the treat-
ment of abdominal aortic aneurysms, which included payments totaling
$92.4 million in 2003. At the time of the EVT plea, the Company had
outstanding fourteen suits alleging product liability related causes of
action relating to the ANCURE System. During the third quarter, the
Company settled eleven of the suits that predated the EVT plea for an
amount recorded in the third quarter of 2003 that is not material to the
Company. Subsequent to the EVT plea, the Company has been served
with approximately thirty additional individual complaints, and more such
suits may be filed. A consolidated class action complaint covering
ANCURE recipients is also pending in the Northern District of California.
These cases generally allege that plaintiffs died or suffered other injuries
as a result of purported defects in the device or the accompanying warn-
ings and labeling. The complaints seek damages, including punitive dam-
ages, and equitable relief. An additional complaint includes state-law
allegations of unfair trade and business practices relating to sales of the
product. While the Company maintains insurance that may serve to
reduce the Company’s exposure with respect to these claims, one of the
Company’s carriers, Allianz Insurance Company (Allianz), has filed suit in
the Circuit Court, State of Illinois, County of DuPage, seeking to rescind
or otherwise deny coverage, and additional carriers have sought to inter-
vene in the case. The Company also has initiated suit against certain of
its carriers, including Allianz, in the Superior Court, State of Indiana,
County of Marion, in order to preserve the Company’s rights to coverage.
The Company will continue to pursue coverage, and, as described above,
continues to make progress in managing its product liability exposure
with respect to the ANCURE System. 

Also following the EVT plea, the Company has been served with securities
class action and shareholder derivative complaints relating to the ANCURE
System. A consolidated securities class action, which names as defen-
dants the Company, EVT and certain of their current and former officers, is
pending in the Southern District of Indiana. Generally, it is alleged that
during all or a portion of the period from June 23, 1999, through June
12, 2003, public statements by the Company relating to the ANCURE
System were false and misleading. Damages are sought on behalf of per-
sons who purchased or otherwise acquired Company shares during that
period. The Company has filed a motion to dismiss the case, which motion
is expected to be fully briefed in the second quarter of 2004.

The derivative suits relating to the ANCURE System currently are pending
in the Southern District of Indiana and in the Superior Court of the State
of Indiana, County of Marion. The suits, purportedly filed on behalf of the
Company, generally allege that the Company’s directors breached their
fiduciary duties by taking improper steps or failing to take steps to pre-
vent the ANCURE and EVT related matters described above. The com-
plaints seek damages and other equitable relief. The state court suits
have been stayed in favor of the federal action. The Company has filed a
motion to dismiss the federal action, which motion is expected to be fully
briefed in the second quarter of 2004. 

On August 29, 2003, Medtronic filed a declaratory judgment action in
the District Court for Delaware against the Company, GSC, Eli Lilly and
Company (Lilly), and Mirowski Family Ventures L.L.C. (Mirowski), chal-
lenging its obligation to pay royalties to Mirowski on certain devices by
alleging the invalidity of certain claims of US patent RE 38,119 (‘119),
which patent relates to cardiac resynchronization therapy and bi-ventricu-
lar pacing therapy. The ‘119 patent is exclusively licensed to the
Company as part of a broader license covering Mirowski patents and is
sublicensed to Medtronic. The parties have agreed to an expedited pro-
ceeding with limited scope.

On February 2, 2004, the Company, GSC, CPI and Mirowski filed a
declaratory judgment action in the District Court for Delaware against St.
Jude and Pacesetter alleging that their Epic HF, Atlas HF, and Frontier
3x2 devices will infringe the ‘119 patent (described in the prior para-
graph) when those devices are approved for sale in the US.

On February 24, 2004, the Company’s subsidiary, CPI, filed a patent
infringement action in the District Court of Minnesota against St. Jude
and Pacesetter alleging that their Quicksite over-the-wire pacing lead has
infringed US Patent No. 5,755,766 / Reexamination Certificate No.
5,755,766 C1 (“the ‘766 Patent”).

Anna Mirowski, Lilly and two Company subsidiaries, GSC and CPI, are
plaintiffs in a patent infringement suit originally filed against St. Jude
and its affiliates in November 1996 in the District Court in Indianapolis.
The suit alleges that St. Jude’s defibrillator products infringe patents
licensed to CPI. In July 2001, a jury found that two of the licensed
patents were valid and that St. Jude had infringed one, a patent that
expired in March 2001. The jury awarded damages of $140.0 million
against St. Jude. The Company did not record a gain given the uncertain-
ty remaining as to the ultimate resolution. On February 13, 2002, the
court, in ruling on a number of post-trial motions, reversed each of the



three-jury findings above, along with the jury award. The court awarded
St. Jude certain post-trial fees and costs (in an immaterial amount),
along with contingent expenses and attorney fees upon any retrial of the
case if a retrial is required following any appeal of the court’s rulings.
Cross appeals are pending in the Federal Circuit Court of Appeals. 

Note 17  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 9, 2004, Guidant acquired AFx, inc., a manufacturer of
microwave surgical cardiac ablation medical devices. Guidant paid $45.0
million in cash and forgave a $5.8 million extension of credit. The pur-

chase price was allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities based upon
fair market values, including $25.0 million in IPRD for technology that
had not reached technological feasibility and had no alternative use and
$37.0 million to intangible assets related to proven technology. A deferred
tax liability was also recorded for the tax effect of the intangible asset. A
risk-adjusted discount rate of 22.5% was applied to the cash flows in
order to value the IPRD. Guidant may make additional payments upon
future satisfaction of regulatory, clinical and sales performance criteria.
These payments will be allocated to the fair value of the intangibles, with
any amounts paid above fair value of identifiable intangibles recorded as
goodwill, when the amount of the contingent payments is determinable.
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Note 18  SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION (Unaudited)

The following table summarizes the Company’s operating results by quarter:

2003 2002
FOURTH THIRD SECOND FIRST FOURTH THIRD SECOND FIRST

Net sales $951.4 $933.7 $940.8 $872.9 $878.3 $809.9 $783.2 $689.2
Cost of products sold 237.7 222.8 231.3 212.0 206.2 198.4 197.4 160.8

Gross profit 713.7 710.9 709.5 660.9 672.1 611.5 585.8 528.4
Research and development 133.1 141.4 130.3 113.6 116.8 101.9 99.6 97.2
Purchased in-process research and development — 35.2 12.0 36.5 48.4 — — 6.5
Sales, marketing and administrative 324.9 302.4 299.9 271.7 260.2 241.9 237.0 211.6
Interest, net (1.2) (1.2) (2.5) (1.4) (2.6) (0.5) 1.0 3.4
Royalties, net 15.7 17.0 16.8 14.4 15.3 13.8 13.7 11.2
Amortization 8.9 5.3 3.4 3.3 3.1 3.3 3.1 3.1
Other, net 2.3 (0.3) 0.4 5.3 5.8 5.4 (0.6) 2.0
Litigation, net — — 422.8 — — — (137.1) —
Foundation contribution — — — — — — 40.0 —
Cook charge — — — — 60.6 — — —
Restructuring charge — — — — — — 14.0 —
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

income taxes 230.0 211.1 (173.6) 217.5 164.5 245.7 315.1 193.4
Income taxes 30.0 64.0 (93.5) 59.0 39.3 66.5 93.4 51.4

Income (loss) from continuing operations $200.0 $147.1 ($ 80.1) $158.5 $125.2 $179.2 $221.7 $142.0
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, 

net of income taxes 4.9 (18.0) (17.0) (65.1) (32.8) (4.1) (16.9) (2.5)

Net income (loss) $204.9 $129.1 ($ 97.1) $ 93.4 $ 92.4 $175.1 $204.8 $139.5

Earnings per share—basic
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.65 $ 0.48 ($ 0.26) $ 0.52 $ 0.41 $ 0.59 $ 0.74 $ 0.47
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,

net of income taxes 0.02 (0.06) (0.06) (0.21) (0.10) (0.01) (0.06) (0.01)

Net income (loss) $ 0.67 $ 0.42 ($ 0.32) $ 0.31 $ 0.31 $ 0.58 $ 0.68 $ 0.46

Earnings per share—diluted
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.63 $ 0.47 ($ 0.26) $ 0.51 $ 0.41 $ 0.59 $ 0.72 $ 0.46
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, 

net of income taxes 0.02 (0.06) (0.06) (0.21) (0.10) (0.02) (0.05) (0.01)

Net income (loss) $ 0.65 $ 0.41 ($ 0.32) $ 0.30 $ 0.31 $ 0.57 $ 0.67 $ 0.45

Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic 306.07 306.64 304.52 303.20 302.63 302.09 301.48 300.76
Diluted 315.33 314.96 304.52 308.03 305.01 305.40 306.22 307.32

Common stock prices
High $60.37 $51.50 $44.51 $37.82 $32.89 $38.50 $42.84 $51.00
Low $44.95 $44.26 $35.51 $29.11 $25.00 $27.10 $28.70 $37.30

All financial information reflects the AAA product line and Brazil operations as discontinued operations.



YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31  (in millions, except share and other data) 2003(1) 2002 (2) 2001(3) 2000 (4) 1999 (5)

Operations:
Net sales $3,698.8 $3,160.6 $2,641.6 $2,464.7 $2,330.5
Cost of products sold 903.8 762.8 623.3 571.2 559.9

Gross profit 2,795.0 2,397.8 2,018.3 1,893.5 1,770.6
Research and development 518.4 415.5 362.3 333.0 305.2
Purchased in-process research and development 83.7 54.9 15.0 — 49.0
Sales, marketing and administrative 1,198.9 950.7 788.6 700.6 674.4
Income from continuing operations $  425.5 $ 668.1 $ 523.4 $ 386.3 $ 352.8
Earnings per share—basic:

Income from continuing operations $ 1.39 $ 2.21 $   1.74 $  1.28 $   1.17
Earnings per share—diluted:

Income from continuing operations $ 1.36 $ 2.18 $   1.71 $ 1.25 $   1.13
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 305.10 301.74 300.86 301.10 300.51
Diluted 312.52 305.99 306.22 310.11 310.89

Cash dividends declared per share(6) $    0.24 — — — —

DECEMBER 31 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Financial Position:

Working capital $2,017.5 $1,437.4 $  759.2 $  453.1 $ 177.6

Current ratio 2.9:1 2.7:1 2.0:1 1.6:1 1.2:1

Capital expenditures, net 249.3 141.1 149.1 159.9 175.1

Total assets 4,640.1 3,716.1 2,916.8 2,521.4 2,250.2

Borrowings 948.3 368.5 760.0 808.9 880.8

Borrowings as a percentage of

total capitalization 25.9% 13.7% 33.0% 40.6% 50.4%

Shareholders’ equity 2,713.3 2,321.8 1,545.8 1,183.5 867.3

Book value per share $   8.68 $   7.59 $   5.05 $   3.82 $ 2.79

Other Data:

Effective income tax rate 12.3% 27.3% 28.1% 37.3% 38.1%

Full-time employee equivalents 13,578 12,540 12,076 10,452 9,157

Common shareholders of record 5,356 5,790 5,866 5,797 6,151

All financial information reflects the AAA product line and Brazil operations as discontinued operations.

(1) Net income and earnings per share–diluted (EPS) include:
: $35.2 million in-process research and development (IPRD) recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of certain bioabsorbable polymer technologies from MediVas LLC
: $32.5 million IPRD primarily related to the Biosensors acquisition and the achievement of a performance milestone related to the six-month clinical data of the everolimus eluting stent trial, FUTURE I
: $16.0 million IPRD recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of a majority interest in Bioabsorbable Vascular Solutions
: $422.8 million net litigation charge primarily related to the arbitration decision involving Cordis Corporation
: $168.3 million tax impact of items described above
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(2) Net income and EPS include:
: $35.6 million IPRD for an exclusive license from Novartis Pharma AG and Novartis AG for the right to utilize the drug everolimus in drug eluting stents
: $19.3 million IPRD recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of Cardiac Intelligence Corporation
: $137.1 million net litigation benefit resulting primarily from a $158.2 million award plus interest and costs against Medtronic, Inc.
: $40.0 million contribution to the Guidant Foundation
: $60.6 million termination payment and related expenses associated with the termination 

of the Cook Group Inc. merger agreement
: $14.0 million for the restructuring of biliary and peripheral product line operations
: $4.9 million tax impact of items described above

(3) Net income and EPS include:
: $15.0 million IPRD related to the acquisition of embolic protection device technology from Metamorphic Surgical Devices, LLC
: $7.5 million of expenses associated with the first-generation PRIZM® Implantable Defibrillator field action
: $8.3 million tax impact of items described above

(4) Net income and EPS include: 
: $127.0 million related to the write-off of an option to acquire exclusive rights to certain experimental therapies for the treatment of heart failure under development by Impulse Dynamics (tax impact

– $9.8 million)

(5) Net income and EPS include: 
: $31.1 million related to transition pay for manufacturing and nonmanufacturing personnel of Intermedics and the impact of purchase accounting valuation adjustments required for inventory

acquired from Sulzer Medica, Ltd
: $49.0 million IPRD recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of Intermedics
: $21.9 million merger-related costs in connection with the acquisition of CardioThoracic Systems, Inc.
: $20.2 million contribution to Guidant Foundation
: $13.6 million other income in connection with one-time gains on an equity investment, net of the loss on the sale of the general surgery product line
: Adjustments to the tax provision for a change in the tax code related to net operating loss carryforwards
: Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of taxes of $3.3 million
: $42.1 million tax impact of items described above

(6) On February 17, 2004, Guidant’s Board of Directors declared a first quarter 2004 dividend of $0.10 per common share outstanding to be paid March 15, 2004, to shareholders of record on 
March 1, 2004.  

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further description of these items.



The management of Guidant Corporation is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the accompanying financial statements and related informa-
tion. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the US and include
amounts based on judgments and estimates by management. 

Management maintains a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and transactions
are properly recorded and executed in accordance with management’s authorization. The design, monitoring and revision of the system of internal
accounting controls involves, among other things, management’s judgments with respect to the relative cost and expected benefits of specific control
measures. The effectiveness of the control system is supported by the selection, retention and training of qualified personnel, an organizational struc-
ture that provides an appropriate division of responsibility and formalized procedures. The system of internal accounting controls is periodically
reviewed and modified in response to changing conditions. An internal audit staff regularly monitors, on a worldwide basis, the adequacy and effective-
ness of internal accounting controls. 

In addition to the system of internal accounting controls, management maintains corporate policy guidelines that help monitor proper overall business
conduct, possible conflicts of interest, compliance with laws and confidentiality of proprietary information. The guidelines are documented in the
Guidant Code of Business Conduct and are reviewed on a periodic basis with members of management worldwide.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, consisting solely of outside directors, appoints the independent auditors and receives and reviews the
reports submitted by them. The Audit Committee meets several times during the year with management, the internal auditors and the independent
auditors to discuss audit activities, internal controls and financial reporting matters. The internal auditors and the independent auditors have full and
free access to the Audit Committee.

Ronald W. Dollens
President and Chief Executive Officer

Keith E. Brauer
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
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Board of Directors and Shareholders
Guidant Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Guidant Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial state-
ments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Guidant
Corporation and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Indianapolis, Indiana
January 26, 2004, except for Notes 16 and 17 
as to which the date is February 24, 2004

Report of Independent Auditors
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Guidant Asia Pacific
Guidant Hong Kong
Suite 2201 Mass Mutual Tower
38 Gloucester Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong

Guidant Australia 
Guidant Australia Pty Ltd.
Level 1, 4 Inglewood Place
Baulkham Hills NSW 2153
Australia

Guidant Canada
Guidant Canada Corporation
505 Apple Creek Blvd. Unit 4
Markham, Ontario L3R 5B1
Canada

GUIDANT OPERATING LOCATIONS

St. Paul, Minnesota
4100 Hamline Avenue North
St. Paul, MN 55112-5798

Santa Clara, California
3200 Lakeside Drive
Santa Clara, CA 95054-2807

Temecula, California
26531 Ynez Road
Temecula, CA 92591-4628

Menlo Park, California
1525 O’Brien Drive
Menlo Park, CA 94025

Houston, Texas
8934 Kirby Drive
Houston, TX 77054-2830

Clonmel, Ireland
Cashel Road, Clonmel
Co. Tipperary
Ireland

Dorado, Puerto Rico
Road 698, Lot No. 12
Dorado, Puerto Rico 00646

Redmond, Washington
6645 185th Avenue NE, Suite 100
Redmond, WA 98052

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of shareholders will be held 
at The Murat Centre, 502 North New Jersey Street,
Indianapolis, Indiana, on May 18, 2004. Formal
notice of the meeting, together with the proxy state-
ment and proxy card, will be mailed to each holder
of record of common stock as of March 11, 2004.

10-K Report
The Company’s Annual Report to the Securities
and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K will be
available and may be obtained without charge
upon written request to the Company Secretary at
the address shown below:

Guidant Corporation
111 Monument Circle, #2900
P.O. Box 44906
Indianapolis, Indiana 46244-0906
317-971-2000  Phone
317-971-2040  Fax
www.guidant.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar 
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43069
Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3069

Private Courier/Registered Mail:
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
66 Brooks Drive
Braintree, Massachusetts 02184
Attention: Priority Processing
888-756-3638  Phone
800-952-9245  TDD
www.equiserve.com

Stock Exchange Listings
New York Stock Exchange Symbol: GDT 

Corporate Headquarters, Operating Locations
and Corporate Information GUIDANT CORPORATION



One Team, One Mission

The 12,000 employee-owners of Guidant are working together toward one common mission: Lifesaving medical solutions
of distinctive value. Guidant people pioneer, develop, manufacture and market a broad range of innovative medical 

technologies that extend the lives, and improve the quality of life, of millions of cardiovascular patients around the globe.
Guidant Corporation shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol GDT. For more information

about Guidant’s products and services, visit the company’s Web site at www.guidant.com.



ONE TEAM, ONE MISSION:
Medical Solutions of Distinctive Value

www.guidant.com

© 2004 Guidant Corporation. All rights reserved. GB7115    SAP MO-230-00


